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Introduction

The Group in brief

AS Viisnurk is engaged in the manufacture of building materials, retail trade of furniture and household furnishings as
well as manufacture of furniture. The business units of AS Vusnurk include the building materials division and
furniture divisu in.

The building materials division manufactures and distributes two softboard-based product categories: insulation and
soundproohng boards as well as interior finishing boards for walls and ceilings.

The furniture division contains a furniture store chain under the name of Skano operating in Ukraine and the Baltic
States, and a factory manufacturing unique household furniture.

The Company’s key markets are Scandinavia, Russia, Ukraine and the Baltic States. The customers and cooperation
partners of AS Vusnurk are accomplished representatives in their field who have longterm relations with the
Company.

From 5 June 1997, AS Viisnurk is listed on the Tallinn Stock Exchange. On 19 September 2007, the division of ASVtisnurk took place and the shares of the manufacturing entity that was spun off were relisted in the Main List of the
Tallinn Stock Exchange pursuant to the resolution of the Listing Committee of the Talhnn Stock Exchange on 20September 2007. Trading the shares of AS Viisnurk was launched on 25 September 2007. The majority owner of ASViisnurk is OU Trigon Wood. As at 31.12.2011, the largest owners of OU Trigon Wood and the entities withsignificant influence over the Group are: AS Trigon Capital, Veikko Lame Oy, Hermitage Eesd OU, Thominvest Oy
and SEB’s Finnish customers.
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Management report

Overview of operating results

Revenue and operating results

In 2011, the revenue of AS Viisnurk totalled 17.3 million euros and in 2010, 13.9 million euros. In 2011, the net profitof AS Viisnurk amounted to 2.6 milhon euros. As a comparison, the net profit in 2010 totalled 0.8 million euros. In2011, the earnings per share of \niisnurk were 0.57 euros and in 2010, 0.17 euros. In 2011, the sales of comparable
entities (Pärnu fibreboard factory, furniture factory and retail chain Skano) was 16.2 million euros (growth of 16°) ascompared to 2010), their consolidated operating profit was 1.0 million euros (2010: 0.9 million euros), and the grossmargin was 23.1° o (2010: 23.4%).

In 2011, EBITDA of the Group amounted to 3.4 million euros (2010: 1.4 million euros). The consolidated net profit
was 2.6 million euros (2010: 0.8 million euros) and net margin was 14.8°/o (2010: 5.5°’o). The results for 2011 weremostly impacted by one off profit of 2.46 million euros from the discounted purchase of Püssi fibreboard factory.

At 25 May 2011, AS Vusnurk purchased Püssi fibreboard factory (whose main area of activity is manufacture offibreboards) at the bankruptcy estate auction by paying 4 million euros for the business unit. The acquisition of thebusiness entity must be recognised by the acquisition method and a purchase analysis needs to be prepared. Inaccordance with this, the assets of the acquired entity (there were no liabilities) were recognised at their fair value in theamount of 6.46 million euros. The fair value of land and buildings is 0.72 million euros and the fair value of equipmentis 5.74 million euros. External experts were involved to determine the value of the assets of the entity — of the largestitems, the production line was assessed by Poyry Management Consulting Oy and registered immovables were assessedby Uus Maa real estate agency. As it was a bargain purchase and the purchase price of the acquired business entity inthe amount of 4 million euros was smaller than the fair value of the acquired net assets in the amount of 6.46 millioncorns, the resulting negative difference in the amount of 2.46 million euros was immediately recognised in the incomestatement. The total area of the registered immovables is 16.23 ha and the total area of the buildings is 7684 m2.

The distribution of revenue and operating results of the Group by activities:
tI°,uci,rd ( REVENUE OPERATING RESULTS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Iluilding m.itenals doision 8 909 6 314 5 150 424 215 2 226 445 8 554 888
Furniture tactorv 7336 6 638 6 848 9245 8 194 635 542 439 495 229
Retail of furniture - Skim> 2002 1 837 2 102 2561 1 439 (93) (88) (341) (330) (70)
I .liminati> ni (917) (860) (948) (1 31)1) (901) (9 (12) 1 (5) (28)
TOTAL 17 330 13929 13 152 17929 15947 2 759 887 177 714 1019
Finance i come and expense (187) (109) (163) (221) (180)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2572 778 14 493 839
(rp rate inCome ta\ (7) ç’) (4) (107) (30)
NET PROFIT 2 565 771 10 386 809

The operating results of the building materials division for 2011 include profit from the bargain purchase of POssifibreboard factory in the amount of 2,455 thousand euros
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Gn mp’s revenue by geographical markets:

The share of Russia and United Kingdom has increased the most and that of Finland and Estonia has decreased themost in the Group’s total sales. The sales to Russia have increased both in the building materials division and thefurniture factory. The sales to the UK comprise mainly the production of Pussi fibreboard factory.

Statement of financial position and cash flow statement

As at 31.12.2011, the total assets of AS Vusnurk amounted to 16.0 million euros. As at 31.12.2010, the total assetsamounted to 9.1 million euros, The balance sheet total increased by 6.9 million euros in 2011. As at 31,12.2011, theCompany’s habilities were 8.3 million euros (31.12.2010: 3.8 million euros) and the Company’s debt-to-equity ratiodecreased from 42% to 52%.

In 2011, the Company’s cash flows from operating activities totalled 0.3 million euros (2010: 1.5 million euros).Negative cash flow related to acquisition of non-current assets was 4.7 million euros (2010: 0.8 million euros).

Performance of business units

Building materials division

The building materials division produces t\vo separate softboard-based product categories: insulation andsoundproohng hoards as well as interior finishing boards for ceilings and walls. In May 2011, the fibreboard factory inPüssi was added to the division. In February 2011, the operator contract for the boilerhouse with Fortum Termest ASwas terminated.

Division’s operating results

Iii 2011, the building material division’s sales were 8.9 million euros and the net profit of the division amounted to 2.2million euros (in 2010, the sales were 6.3 million euros and the division’s net profit was 0.4 million euros. In 2011, thesales of the division were 7.8 million euros and the profit was 0.4 million euros (exclusive of POssi fibreboard factory).Exports made up 82% >f the division’s total sales (2010: 71%), the largest export markets were Finland, Russia andUnited Kingdom.

iJ.,#n.md ( % of sales

2011 2010 2011 2010
lml,ind 6 532 5 543 37,7” o 39,8°
Russia 4 586 3 080 26,4° 22,1”.
Ust,,nia 2 385 2 572 13,7% 18,4°.
Ukraine 792 62 4,6’s 4,5”.,
United Kingdiim 720 63 4,2% 0,5%
Sv,eden 482 456 2,8”o 3,3”..
I ,ithuania 407 400 2,3% 2,9%
l,atvta 361) 393 2,1% 2,8%

K,e’akhstin 203 250 1,2”S 18°..
Netherlands 179 1 1,0% 0,0°.,
Denmark 153 116 0,9%

Bulgaria 108 () 0,6%

India 96 63 0,6% (),S’H.
Germany 84 99 0,5% ((7”
Israel 55 33 0,3% 0,5%

()rher c,,untrles 188 233 1,1’S 1,6”..

TOTAL 17 330 13 929 100,0% 100,0%
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The sales of the building materials division liv country:

!I,susvtd O/ of sales

2011 2010 2011 2010
(inland 3545 2536 398°’ 402”
(stnia 1 634 1 819 18,3% 28,8°’o
Russia 1 428 686 16,0%

nited Kingdom 720 63 8,1% I ,0°o

Sweden 482 456 5,4% 7,2”,
Netherlands 179 0 2,0%
Denmark 153 115 1 ,7°, 1,8’s,

1,attia 136 189 1,5% 3,0%
1(ulgsina 108 0 1,2%
India 96 63 1,1% 1,0%
Germany 84 70 (1,9% 1,1%
tkr,unc 72 33 0,8% (1,5”,
Israel 55 33 0,6% 0,5%
japan 36 (1 0,4% 0,0%
Greece 36 21 0,4% 0,3”’
Chma 32 65 O,4°/n 1.0%

I athuania 32 18 ((,4% 0304,

I )ther counines 81 147 1,0% 2,4”o

TOTAL 8909 6314 100,0% 100,0%

Interior finishing boards

Interior finishing boards are produced under Isotex brand, wholly owned by the Group. Interior finishing boards are
made of natural softboard which is produced on the factory’s main production line and the boards have milled tenonsand the surface is covered with paper or textile. This technology enables to produce boards of different colours andpatterns.

In 2011, the revenue of intenor fmishing boards totalled 2.0 million euros (2010: 1.9 million euros). Interior finishing
boards made up 22% (2010: 30%) of the division’s total sales. The largest market for interior finishing boards continuedto be Finland,

General construction boards

As compared with the previous year, the sales of general construction boards increased by 50%, reaching 6.7 million
(2010: 4.4 million euros). \Vind-protecnon boards continued to be the largest product group. The main product

group of the fibreboard factory in Püssi comprises floor tiles that are mainly used as a base for parquet.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 OS VIISNURK (TRANSLATION C/F THE cSTG,NIAN ORIOINAL( S



Furniture division

The furniture division is focused on manufacturing and distribution (if wooden household furniture. The furnituredivision manufactures furniture for living rooms, oftices, dining rooms as well as bedrooms. The retail brand of the
division is Skano and there are twelve furniture showrooms bearing this name: three in Estonia, one in Latvia, one in
Lithuania and six in Ukraine.

Retail business - Skano

During the year, greater emphasis was laid on the development of furniture retail sales. The wholly—owned subsidiary
of AS Viisnurk, OU Skano has been set up to focus on the retail business. The wholly-owned subsidiaries of OUSkano, SIA Skano, UAB Skano LT and TOV Skano Ukraine operate in Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine, respectively.

Retail sales by country:

fhsusaml C % of sales Number ot stores

2011 2010 2011 2010 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
lsnia 683 657 34,1° 35,8° 3 2
I auts 224 204 11,2/ lii I
lihuanu 375 382 I8,7°a 20,8° 1 2
lfkrunc 720 594 36,tf o 32,3° 6 7
TOTAL 2 002 1 837 100,0% 100,0% 11 12

In 2011, one store was opened in Tallinn and one was closed in Kaunas and Kiev. Due to weakening of demand inforeign markets, no new showrooms are planned to be opened in 2011. Ar the beginning of 2012, another store wasclosed in Dnepropetrovsk, Ukraine.

In the financial year, the sales of subsidiaries operating under the name of Skano and focusing (in the retail businessdecreased by 9°.S. In 2010, the sales of subsidiaries decreased by 13%.

Furniture production

In 2011, the furniture factory produced furniture made of birch wood. The target customers of the furniture factoryare primarily medium and small-sized furniture wholesalers and retailers who value the unique design and high qualityof furniture as well as flexible customer service.

Investments

% of sales

2011 2010

In 2011, investments in non-current assets totalled 7.2 million euros (2010: 754 thousand euros).

The largest investment was the acquisition of a new business unit — fibreboard factory in Püssi — as the bankruptcyestate at the cost of 6.4 million euros in the second quarter. In addition, investments in the amount of 0.2 million euroswere made for commissioning the factory.

Forecast and development

Skano. In 2012, we continue to contain costs and do not plan any major expansion of the retail chain.

The sales of the furniture factory by country:

iI’o,ecand C

2011 2010

inland 2 987 3 (5)4 40,8% 45,2°
Ru ja 3 158 2 394 43 1 / 36 1
Ka,akhstan 194 225 2,7% 3.3°o

I ti ma 68 )9 09/s I i

( hOer CoUntries 12 56 0,0%
ubstdianes 917 860 12,5% 13,1%
TOTAL 7 336 6 638 100,0% 100,0%
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Furniture facto, In 2012 the sales volume will remain lower than the production capacity would enable. Therefore,
the work volume in the furniwre factory continues to be low. Agreements have been concluded with emplt)yees for
using the shortened working time until 31 March 2012.

Building materials division, At the beginning of 2012, the division worked at reduced capacity. \Ve will continue to
look for clients in other regions, especially in the Asian countries and Russia.

mplo

dliii! Iii
()rganisational chart of .\S Viisnurk as at 31.12.2011

the chart does not include OU IsoleN because that company did not have any economic activities in the financial year and in the comparativepenod.

In 2011, the average number of employees of the Group was 351 (2010: 308). By the end of 2011, AS Viisnurk
employed 332 employees (2010: 275). As at 31.12.2011, the Group including the subsidiaries employed 369 people
(2010: 316). At the end of the financial year, the Group employed 282 workers and 89 specialists and executives (2010:
226 and 91, respectively). The average age of the Company’s employees was 44.7 years (2010: 43.5).

In 2011, employee wages and salaries totalled 4.3 million euros (2010: 3.5 million euros). Compared with the previous
financial year, the Company’s payroll expenses increased by 23.2%, In 2011, gross remuneranon paid to the membersof the Management Board totalled 234 thousand euros (2010: 190 thousand euros). The members of the SupervisoryBoard did not receive any remuneration in 2011 and 2010.

The distribution of the number of employees of AS Vdsnurk by unit (as at 31.12):

2011 2010 Change %
Building materials do sam 146 82 78.0°
I’urniture fictorv 186 193 (3.6° o)
I )l, Skani 12 I 0 20.11%
SIA Skano 2 3 (33.3°)
t L\ 11 Skano I 1’ 2 4 (50.11°)
1< IV Skani, lkraine 21 24 (12.5°o)
f’F.\1.1Jroup 369 316 16.S°/o

0’
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Financial ratios

EBITDA = operating profit + depreciation
EBITDA margin EBJTDA / revenue
Operating margin = operating profit / revenue
Net margin = net profit / revenue
Return on total assets = net profit / total assets
Return on equity = net profit / equity
Debt ratio liabilities / total assets
Earnings per share net profit/ number of shares
Price/earnings (PE ratio = closing price of share / earnings per share
Book value of share equity / number of shares
Market to book value = closing price of share / book value of share
Market capitahsanon closing price of share number of shares

Share

Share price

The opening price in 2011 was 1.39 euros. The highest price of the year was 1.86 euros and the lowest price 1.34 euros.The closing price in 2011 was 1.62 euros. A total of 910 927 shares were traded in 2011 and the total sales amounted to1.47 million euros.

The opening price in 2010 was 0.73 euros. The highest price of the year was 1.56 euros and the lowest price was 0.70euros. The closing price in 2010 was 1439 euros. A total of 906 1433 shares were traded in 2010 and the total salesamounted to 1.02 million euros.

The opening price in 2009 was 0.82 euros. The highest price of the year was 1.03 euros and the lowest price was 0.44euros. The closing price in 2009 was 0.72 euros. A total of 1 281 969 shares were traded in 2009 and the total salesamounted to 0,79 million curos.

The opening price in 2008 was 1.89 euros. The highest price of the year was 1.91 euros and the lowest price was 0.65euros. The closing price in 2008 was 0.78 euros. A total of 201 513 shares were traded in 2008 and the total salesamounted to 0.29 million euros.

/i’O%lviIIrI I’ 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Income statement
Revenue 17 330 13 929 (3 152 17 929 15 947
I’111’iD.\ 3 436 1 430 653 1 261 1 587
I 7B1’l’I)j\ margin 19,8% 10,3% 5,0% 7,0° 9,9%
Operating profit 2 759 887 177 7(4 1 019
( )peranng margin (5,9% (4° 1,3° 4,0° 6.4°
Net proflt 2 565 771 10 386 809
Net margin 14,8% 5,5°/n 0,l° 2,2’ 5.!.

Statement of financial position
Total assets 15 950 9 115 8 488 10 468 10 063
Return on total assets 16,1% 8,5% 0,1° 3,7°. 8,0’
Equity 7 693 5 331 4 570 4 548 4 553
Rerurn on equity 33,3°/a 14,5% 0,2% 8,5” 17,8%
Debt-to-equity ratio 51,8’ 41,5% 46.2° a 57% 55%

Share (31.12)
—________________________________________________

Closingprice 1,62 1,44 0,72 0,78 1,85
Earnings per share 11,57 0,17 (1,002 0,1)9 (1,18
Price/earnings (P/F) ratio 2,84 8,41) 375,67 9(19 10,30
l)o k value of share 1,71 1,19 1,02 1,01 1,01
Market to book raw) 0,93 1,21 0,71 (1,77 1,83
Market eapttili lOon 7 288 6 479 3 23) 3 509 8 323
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The following table provides an overview of the movements in the share price of AS Vusnurk and the trading volumes
on the Talhnn Stock Exchange from 2009 to 2011.

2000

1 .800

Shareholders

The distribution of share capital by the number of shares acquired as at 31.12.2011:
Number of shareholders % of shareholders Number of shares 00 sf share capitalI -09 05 15,0% 2 757 0.06%100 - 990 254 40,20 98 458 2,l9°I 000-9 90’) 247 39,0 o 628 441 13.97010 000 - 99 999 34 5,4% 893 176 19,85%100 (((11) — 099 999 1 0,2”o 194 ((37 4,31%1 (58)100 - 9 999 999 1 ((.2° 2 682 192 59,62iotal 632 11)0” o 4 499 061 IOU,) (0”,,

The distribution of share capital by the type of owners as at 31.12.2011:
Number of shareholders “,, ,,fsharehs,lders Number of shares “ of share capitall’nvate investors 521 82,5% 862 942 19,2%Institutional Investors 11 1 17,5% 3 636 I 19 80,8”Oral 632 100”,, 4499(161 100,0’’,

The distribution of share capital by the domicile of shareholders as at 31.12.2011:
Number ssf sharclt,,lders “,, of shareholders Number of shares “o ,f share capitallst,,nia 580 93,))”,, 3 988 695 88.66”,,I .uxcmbosrg 2 0,4°’1 200 ((37 4,45%Sweden 2 0,4”o 95 434 2.12”inland 16 2,5”, 85911 1,91”latvia 4 0,6”, 74 225 l,65”aOther 19 3,0% 54 759 1,210Ts,tal 632 100% 441)9(161 10)0”,

List of shareholders with ownership over 1% as at 31.12.2011:
Sharehsldcr

Number of shares ( )s nership( )l TRIG( (N WO( (1)
2 682 192 59,62NO I i’NIIMI(OORG 5.5.
194 037 4,31Skandinaviska l’lnskilda llanken l’innish (lients 93 834 2,00Vip Invest ( )1i
67 500 3.50( (legs Radcenk,
60 00)) 1,33Ok’ I’lK( 011K IThS1I
59 750 1,33( )U (dl & Kaubandus
50 600 1,12( ) Vilgan K ,nsultatsioonid
50 ((0)1 1,1l( (IV)) KOI.DM.\l
49 231 1,09I ne Nature lOsO ( )t
45 000 1,0))
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Direct ownership of the members of the Management and Supervisory Boards as at 31.122011:
Cl0 Adamson does not own any shares
j oakimJohan Helenius 20,000 shares 0.44°
I leiti Riisberg (OC Vilgan Konsu1tatsioonid — 50,000 shares 1.11%
Andrea Kivistik — does not own any shares
Einar Pähkel — does not own any shares

Risks

Interest rate risk

The interest rare risk of AS Vusnurk Group arises from possible changes in Euribor (Euro Interbank Offered Rate) asmost of the Group’s loans are tied to Eunbor. As at 31.12.11, 6-month Euribor was 1.617 and as at 31.12.10, 1,227,

Interest rate risk also depends on overall economic situation of Estonia and Europe and the changes in the banks’average interest rates. The Group has cash flow risk arising from changes in interest rates because most of the Group’s
loans have floating interest rates. Management estimates that the cash flow risk is not material; therefore, no financialinstruments are used to hedge risks.

Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is the Group’s risk to incur major losses due to fluctuations in foreign currencyexchange rates. Foreign currency exchange risk is related to the change in the sales of Skano stores located abroad, dueto the use of local currencies in target markets. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries located outside Estonia areprimarily exposcd to this risk. The foreign currency exchange risk is low for AS Viisnurk because most of the export-import agreements have been concluded in euros.

Risk of the economic environment

The risk of the economic environment in the building materials division depends on the overall trends in theconstruction market and in the furniture division, on the future expectations <if the consumers with regard toeconomic welfare. Although the risk of the economic environment continues to be high as compared to the situation ayear ago, the situation has somewhat stabilised by now and the risk has decreased as compared to the previous year.

Fair value

The fair values of cash, accounts receivable, short-term loans and borrowings do not significantly differ from theirbook values. The fair values of long-term loans and borrowings do not significantly differ from their book valuesbecause their interest rates mostly correspond to the interest rates prevailing in the market.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a potential loss arising from the existence of limited or insufficient financial resources that arenecessary for performing the obligations related to the activities of the Group. The Management Board continuouslymonitors cash flow forecasts, using the existence and sufficiency of the Group’s financial resources for performing theassumed obligations and financing the srrategic objectives of the Group.

I S V:NUIK <IRA ILAIICN c:: IRE LS F)NI N )lINAL 11



Group structure

Shares of subsidiaries:
011 Skano OU isotex Sh\ kano VAIl Skano I( )V Skan,

I 1 Ukrainal) micile (Iistonia (Ustorna (I.ìrvia) (I irhuaia (Ukraine)
Number of shares at
3l.12.201O(pcs) 1 1 1 100 1
Ownership%31.12.2010 100 100 100 100 100

Number of shares at
31.12.2011 (pea) 1 1 1 100 1
Ownership°/o31.12.2011 100 100 100 100 100

Skano OU is engaged in retail sales in Estonia, owning three furniture showrooms — inj)irve Centre, Tallinn and on theground floor of Rocca Al Mare shopping centre and the head office of AS Vhsnurk, Pärnu. Skano OU owns 100% ofthe entines Skano SIA, UAB Skano LT and T()V Skano Ukraina.

SL\ Skano launched its operations in November 2005 and it is involved in furniture retail sales in Latvia, owning oneshowroom in Riga. UAB Skano LT launched its operations in April 2007 and is involved in retail sales in Lithuania,owning furniture showroom in Vilnius. TOV Skano Ukraina launched its operations in Ukraine in June 2007 and isinvolved in furniture retail sales, owning furniture showrooms in Kharkov, Kiev, Donetsk and Dnepropetrovsk.

The goal of setting up Isotex OC was to enable the division to operate independently under its own brand and tofoster the development of its business units. In conjunction with the implementation of the Group’s restructuring plan,the subsidiary is no longer used. The subsidiary Isotex OU did not have any operating activities in 2011 and 2010.

PHi-OH I ) VUPK lEA NSLAT1ON OF THE VP FONIAN 0- I( 4AO 12



Corporate Governance Recommendations Report

The Corporate Governance Recommendations is a set of guidelines and recommended rules to be carried out primarilyliv entities whose shares have been admitted to trading on a regulated market in Estonia. From 1 January 2006, thelisted entities are required to tollow the principle “Comply or Explain”.

The Corporate Governance Recommendations lay down the principles of calling and conducting general meetings ofshareholders, composition, activities and responsibilities of supervisory and management boards, disclosures andfinancial rep uting.

As the principles outlined in the Recommendations are recommended, the Company does not have to comply with allof them but needs to explain in the Corporate Governance Recommendations Report why these requirements are notcomplied with.

In its business, AS Viisnurk adheres to prevathng laws and legislative provisions. As a public entity, AS Vusnurk alsofollows the requirements of the Talhnn Stock Exchange and the pnnciples of equal treatment of shareholders andinvestors. Pursuant to this, the Company follows most of the guidelines set out in the Recommendations. Below arearguments for noncompliance of the Recommendations that the Company does not comply with.

(lause 1. 1. 1 The Issuer shall enable shareholders to raise questions on items mentioned in the agenda, including prior to the dqy of theGeneral Meeting. in the notice ca//ins the General Meetin& the Issuer shall include the address or e-mail address to which the shareholdercan send questions. The Issuer shallguarantee a response to valid questions at the Genera/Meeting during hearing ofa correspondeeig subjector be/ire the ho/ding of the General A feeling, giving shareholders enough timefor examining the response. Ifpossible, the Issuer shall pie itsresponses to questions presented before holding the General Meeting and shallpeeblish the question and response on its website.

Before the meeting, no questions were presented to the Issuer.

Clause 1 3.2 Members of the Management Board, the Chair,nan of the Supervisory Board and fpossible, all members of the SuperiesoryBoard and at least one of the auditors shallparticipate in the General Meeting.

All members of the Management Board were present at the General Meeting of Shareholders at 30 June 2011. TheChairman of the Supervisory Board and the auditor were not present at the meeting. The auditor was not present at themeeting because the Management Board did not consider the auditor’s participation necessary as there were not anyissues on the agenda that might have needed the auditor’s comments. The auditor has expressed his opinion in theauditor’s report, staring that the consolidated financial statements of the Group give a true and fair view, in all materialrespects, of the financial position of the Group as at 3 1.12.2010 and the financial results and cash tiows for the yearthen ended in accordance with International Financial Reporng Standards as adopted by the European Union. TheSupervisory Board has expressed its satisfaction with the auditors work.

Clause 1.3.3 The Issuer shall make participation in the General Meeting possible b) means of co,n,nunication equipment (illume/i i/thetechnical equzmnent is available and where doing so is not too cost prohibitive to the Issuer.

The Issuer did not make monitoring and participation in the General Meeting possible by means of communicationequipment, because no technical equipment was available.

Clause 2.2. 1 The Management Board shall have more than one (1) member and the ()iairman shall be electedfrom among the members ofthe A lanagement Board. The lviamiagement Board or Sipen’esory Board shall establish an area of responsibility /br each member of theManagement Boaril The Chairman oJ the Supervisory Board shall conclude a contract of service we/h each member of/he ManagementBoard/br discharge of theirfrnctions.

The Management Board of the Issuer have two members, one of whom is the Chairman of the Management Board.Contracts of service have been concluded with the members of the Management Board which also regulate the areas ofresp( msibilitv.

Clause 2.2. Basic wages, peej’i rmance pay, terimnation henJIts, other payable benejits and hous schemes ofa member n/the ManagementI3oarcl as eve/I as their essential fratures (mc! fratures based on comparison, incentives and risk) shall be published en a iear andunambigieous fovea on the website of the Issuer and in the Goeporate Governance Recommendations Report. Information published shall bedeemed clear and umeamhiguous fit directly e,\presses the amouflt of v\pense to the Isseeer or the amount oJforrseeable e..pense as at the dayof disclosure.

The Issuer shall not disclose the remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board by person because theIssuer considers this information sensitive to a member of the Management Board and invasion of his privacy. Itsdisclosure is not necessary for making a statement of the management quality of the Issuer and it will harm the



competitive position of the Issuer and the members of the Management Board. Thus, the Issuer has decided not to
disclose the remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board, In 2011, the gross remuneration paid to themembers of the AS Viisnurk Management Board totalled 150 thousand euros. As at 31.12.2011, pursuant to thecontracts entered into, termination benehts totalling 6-month remuneration are payable to the members of theManagement Board.

Clause 2.3.2 The Supervisory Board shall decide s/gn.ficant transactions of the Issuer and a member of its Maoigeinent Board or clsserelatite or a rehited person and shall decide the terms of such transactions. The transactions approved by the Supervisory Board and
tonducted hetweeii a member of the Uanagement Board, its close relative or a related person and the Issuer sha/l be published in thecorporate Governance Recommendations Report.

There have nor been any transactions between the Issuer and a member of its Management Board or a close relative ora related person.

Clause 3. 1 .3 Lon the establishment of committees by the Supervisory Board, the Issner shall publish their existence, duties, inembee:hipand position in the oiganisation on its website. Upon a chan,ge in the committee e structure, the Isseser shall publish the content of suchchanges anci the period c/ewing which the procedures are in effict.

During 2011, the Supervisory Board of the Issuer has not established any committees.

Clause 3.2.2 At least ha//of/he members ofthe Supervisory Board of/he Issuer shall be independent.

‘Ihe Supervisory Board currently consists of three members, none of whom can be considered independent under theRecommendations. Ulo Adamson and Joakim Johan Helenius are members of the Management Board of theshareholder OU Trigon Wood controlling the Issuer. Hem Rnsberg is not independent under the Recommendationsbecause he works at AS Trigon Capital and he reports to the other members of the Supervisory Board. However, theIssuer is convinced that the experience and knowledge of the aforementioned persons shall ensure effective andprohtable management of the Issuer and thus take account of the interests of shareholders in every aspect.

Clause 3.2.5 The amount of remuneration of a member of the Siipervisoey Board appointed at the meeting and the procedure for hispayment shall be published en the Coeporate Governance Recommendations Report, out/ining separcite/y basic and additional remuneration
(md termination and otherpqyable benfits).

The Issuer does not pay any remuneration to the members of the Supervisory Board.

Clause 3.2.6 if a member of the Supervisory Board has attendedjiwer than a ha//of/he meeti4gs of/he Siervisory Board this shall beindicated separate/y in the Coeporate Governance Recommendations Report

All members of the Supervisory Board have participated in more than half of the meetings of the Supervisory Board.

Clause 3.3.2 Belre his election, a member candidate of the Supenisoey Board shall notft other members of the Supervisory Board o/anexistence of a coe/iict of interest, /1 it arises fter the election, he shall immediate/y not/ft of it. A member of the Supervisory Board shallimmediately notfr the Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board of a business proposal made to a member of the.S’upervisory Board, his close relative or a relatedperso,i.

The members of the Supervisory Board have not notified the Issuer of any conflicts of interest by the time ofpreparing the 2011 annual report.

Clause 5.2 The Issuer shaIIpublish the disclosure dates ofinformation subject to disclosure throughout the,year at the beginning of the jiscalyear in a separate notice, jaIled ajinancial calendar.

The Issuer did not disclose a separate notice but information subject to disclosure was made public no later than at thedates set out in the law.

Clause 5.6 The Issuer shall disclose the dates and places of meetings with ana/ysts and presentations and press coiftrences organi.edforanalysts, mni’esto,: or institutional investors on its website.

According to the rules and regulations of the Tall.inn Stock Exchange, the Group shall disclose all relevant informationthrough the stock exchange. The Issuer does not regularly organise press conferences and meetings, therefore, theschedule of meetings cannot be disclosed. At the meetings with investors, only previously disclosed information shallbe supplied.
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Clause 6.2.1 Together with a notice tiilhiiig the Generni Meeting, the Sieri’isoy Boani shall make in/n miation on an audetorc candidate
aeaihthle to shareholders. 1/it is desired to appoint an auditor who has audited the Is.cuer’s repores Jör the precious /inancea/ *ear theSuperi’isory Board shallpassJi1gement on his work.

The auditor shall be paid a fee according to the concluded contract. According to the contract, the amount of the fee
shall be confidential. However, the Issuer beheves that the disclosure of the fee does not affect the rehabihty of the
audit. As the Supervisory Board wants to continue cooperation with the auditor, it is a proof that the Supervisorv
Board is satisfied with the current auditor.

The activities of the Issuer comply with the requirements of the Recommendations in all other aspects.



Environmental policy

Since 2004, 1)0th the furniture and building materials divisions hold integrated termless environmental permits which
are required 1w the Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control Act. Adherence to the requltements of the permits
ensures that production activity has a minimal impact on the environment. The requirements set out in the integratedpermit ensure the protection of water, air and soil, and the management of generated waste in an environmentally
sustainable manner.

lo meet the requirements of the Packaging Act, in 2005 the Company entered into a contract with the Estonian
Recovery Organisation (ERO). Under the contract, all responsibilities of AS Vusnurk related to packaging collection,recovery and related reporting were transferred to ERO. The contract ensures that all end consumers may return thepackaging free of charge to containers bearing the Green Point sign.

In 2008, the share of water-based finishing materials was significantly increased in the furniture division and thereby,the use (if solvent-based materials and emissions of volatile organic compounds was reduced to the total permittedemissions tigure.

Water usage
In i/’s,eind, i/ nt’ 2011 2010 Change %
Water use; 55.5 48.4 14.7°

groundwater (municipal water) 3.9 4(1 (2.5’)
gniundwater (own bore wells) 20.6 14.1 46.1”
surtice water 31.0 30.3 2.3°

Water discharge; 31.0 21.9 4l.6°
condtni,nallv clean svastewaler 10.0 7.9 26.6°,
n astewatec 21.0 14.0 50.0”

Water loss 24.5 26.5 (7.5”)

Water use and wastewater discharge
iI,,,,e,,ndt 2011 2010 Change %
Water use; 5.3 4.3 23.3”,

groundwater (municipal water) 2.7 2.8 (3.6”4)
groundwater (i ,‘,vn bore wells) 1.9 0.9 II1.l”o
surfice water 0.7 ((.6 16.7”,

Water discharge: 18.4 28.0 (34.37o)
\vastewater 18.4 28.0 (34.3’)

lotal expenses 23.7 32.3 (26.6” )
Sales of surface water and groundwater 0 ((.8 (1 00.0°,)
Total conditit inal income 0 0.8 (1 00.0°)

Main pollutants
lit Is/ti 2011 2010 Change %
Volatile orgentc compounds 21.3 11.8
I )rgtnie dust 3.0 3.2 (6.3”
lotal 24.3 15.0 62(1”,

Waste handling
f/’,’sonl( 2011 2010 Change %
I landltng ( if hazardous waste 15.2 1 1.7 29.9”
I landling f non-hazardous waste 26.2 25.6 2.3°
I otal expenses 41.4 37.3 11.0”,,

Receding of waste in the production of
heat energy 18.3 28.5 (35.8°)
Sales , if yv, ,t,d waste 2.4 2.3 4.0’’
Sties of metal wzste 7.2 1.8 300.0”,,
Foul condttional Income 27,9 32.6 (1 4.5°)
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Consolidated financial statements

ConsoNdated statement of financia’ position

t?su.ind 1 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 206 1 011
Receivables and prepayments (Notes 3; 5) 1 674 1198
Inventories (Note 6) 3 177 2 484

Total current assets 5 057 4 693

Investment property (Note 7) 185 185
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 10 692 4 217
Intangible assets (Note 9) 16 20

Total non-current assets 10 893 4 422

TOTAL ASSETS 15950 9115

Borrowings (Notes 3; 10) 1 380 1 383
Pavahles and prepayments (Notes 3; 12) 2 137 1 462
short-term provisions (Note 13) 11 8

Total current liabilities 3 528 2 853

long-term borrowings (Notes 3; 10) 4 490 733
Long—term OVi5iOflS (Note 13) 239 198
Total non-current liabilities 4 729 931

Total liabilities 8 257 3 784

Share capital (at nominal value) (Note 14) 2 699 2 875
Share premium 364 364
Statutory reserve capital 288 288
Currency translation differences (Ii) 16
Retained earnings 4 353 1 788

Total equity (Note 14) 7 693 5 331

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 15950 9115

The notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 - 48 are an integral part of these consolidated financialstatements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

; o:oind 1 2011 2010

REVENUE (Note 25) 17 330 13 929

Cost of goods sold (Note 16) (14 119) (10 665)

Gross profit 3211 3264

1)istrihunon COStS (Note 17) (2 383) (2 001)
\dministrative expenses (Note 18) (537) (427)

Other operating income (Note 20) 2 506 90
Other operating expenses (Note 21) (43 (39)

Operating profit (Note 25) 2 759 887

linance Income (Note 22) 1
lOnance costs (Note 22) (l88 (110)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 2572 778

Corporate Income tax (Notes 14; 23) (7) (7)

NET PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL ‘(EAR 2565 771

I )ther cnmprchensivc income
Currency translation differences (27) (10)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 2 538 761
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Basic earnings per share (Note 15) 0,57 0,17

Diluted earnings per share (Note 13) 0,57 0,17

Ihe notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 48 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Conso’idated cash flow statement

on and E 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 2 572 778

.\djiistments of profit before tax for the effects of non-
cash transactions, items of income or expense associated
with in esnng or financing cash flows and changes in
assets and liabilities related to operating activities (Note
24) (2050) 855

Cash generated from operations 522 1633
Interest payments (Note 22) (188) (106)
Corporate income tax paid (Notes 14; 23) (7) (7)

Net cash generated from operating activities 327 1 520

Cash flows from investing activities
.\equisition of a business unit (4O0O 0
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible (713) (775)
assets (Notes 8, 9)
Sale of subsidiary 0 3

Net cash used in investing activities (4713) (772)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans (Note 10) 5905 445
Repayment of loans (Note 10) (1 899) (537)
lOnance lease payments (Note 10) (252) (38)
Reduction of share capital (Note 14) (176) (1

Net cash used in financing activities 3 578 (130)

NET CHANGE IN CASH (808) 618
EXCHANGE GAINS/LOSSES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 4

OPENING BALANCE OF CASH (Note 3) 1011 389
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH (Note 3) 206 1011

The notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 48 are an tntegral part of these consolidated financialstatements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

(:urrccy
Share Statutory translation

premium reserve capital differences

More detailed information about share capital is disclosed in Note 14.

The notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 — 48 are an integral part of these consolidated financialstatements.

!rtsiaHseelltud ainuft dentifitseerimseks
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thsusand C Retained
earninesShare capital Foul

Balance at 31.12.2009 2 875 364 288 26 1 017 4 570

\elpnySi/sr i/v /isian2a/ year 771 771Other amp rr/vnth iflame (10) 0 (10)Fool comprehensive income for
21>10 I> >1 (10) 771 761Balance at 31.12.2010 2 875 364 288 16 1 788 5 331

Recalculation of nominal value of
shares into euros (176) 0 0 >1 0 (1 76)\elprv/iijar the ji,tmsil year

—‘ 2 565Other iimprelieiethr i,tame 27,) 0 27,)Total comprehensive income for
201 1 >1 (1 >1 (27) 2 565 2 53Balance at 31.12.2011 2 699 364 288 (11) 4 353 7 693
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

AS Viisnurk (the Company) (registration number: 1142143; address: Suur-jfle 48, Pärnu) is an entity registered in theRepublic of Estonia. It operates in Estonia and through its subsidiaries, in Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine. Theconsolidated financial statements prepared for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 include the financialintormation of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group): Skano ()U, Isotex ()U and Skano()U’s whollyowned subsidiaries SIA Skano; UAB Skano LT and TOV Skano Ukraina. The Group’s main activities areproduction and distribution of furniture and softboard made of wood.

AS Viisnurk was established at 19 September 2007 in the demerger of the former AS \niisnurk, currently AS TrigonProperty Development, as a result of which to which the manufacturing units, i.e. the construction materials divisionand furniture division were spun off and transferred to the new entity.

The Group’s shares are listed in the Main List of the Tallinn Stock Exchange. The majority owner of AS Viisnurk is()U Trigon \Vood. Until November 2009, the ultimate controlling party of AS Vilsnurk was TDI Investments KY.Since November 2009, when the ownership interest in OU Trigon Wood was divided, the Group has no ultimatecontrolling parry, but the following investors with the largest holdings in OU Trigon Wood have significant influenceover the Group as at 31 December 2011: AS Trigon Capital (30.13%), Veikko Lame Oy (26.49°/o), Hermitage Eesti CU(l2.64°o), Thominvest ()y (11.94%) and SEB’s Finnish customers (l0.96°o.

The Management Board of AS Vi.isnurk authonsed these consolidated financial statements for issue at 29 March 2012.Pursuant to the Commercial Code of the Republic of Estonia, the financial statements are subject to approval by theSupervisory Board of AS Viisnurk and the General Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders have the right not toapprove the annual report prepared and approved by the Management Board, and request preparation of a new annualreport.

Summary of accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set outbelow. ‘Ihese policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

Bases of preparation

The 2011 consolidated financial statements of AS Vusnurk Group have been prepared in accordance with InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Union (IFRS.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make assumptions andpass judgements, which affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,income and expenses. The estimates and related assumptions are based on the historical experience and several otherfactors that are believed to be relevant and that are based on circumstances which help define principles for theevaluation of assets and liabilities and which are not directly available from other sources. Actual results may notcoincide with these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in accounting estimates arerecognised prospectively after the period in which a change in the estimate occurred. Note 4 includes those areas whichrequire more complicated estimates and where accounting estimates and assumptions have a material impact oti thein formatii in recognised in the financial statements.

Changes in presentation and accounting policies

(a) Change in functional and presentation currency
At 1 january 2011, the Republic of Estonia joined the euro area and adopted the euro as the nationalcurrency, which replaced the Estonian kroon. For further information, see accounting policy C.
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H k I. H)(b) (:hinge in presentation
The disclosure of benefits (mci. tax expenses) granted to the members of the management and supervisoryboards have been widened to include all the management supervisory boards of consolidation group entities,
in connection with that the comparative information (if the previous period has been restated:

/1 saisi( 2010 2010
restated

Shirt wrrn bcnc6ts 9))
Social ta 65 35

TOTAL 255 142

(c) Implementation of new or amended standards and interpretations
The new or amended standards or interpretations that are effective for the first time in the financial yearbeginning at 1 January 2011 did not have a material impact on the Group.

(d) New standards, interpretations and their amendments

New or amended standards or interpretations have been published which will become mandatory for theGroup from the period beginning (in or after 1 January 2012 and which the Group has not early adopted.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yetadopted by the EU) — the standard applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a 3oiflt arrangement, anassociate or an unconsolidated structured entity. It replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in lAS 28
In!’estrnenhs in Associates. IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose information that helps financial statement readers toevaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates, oirltarrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. To meet these objectives, the new standard requires disclosures ina number (if areas, including (i) significant judgements and assumptions made in determining whether an entitycontrols, jointly controls, or significantly intluences its interests in other entitles, (u) extended disclosures on the shareof flOti controlling interests in group activities and cash flows, (in) summarised financial information of subsidiarieswith material non_controlling interests, and (iv) detailed disclosures of interests in unconsolidated structured entitles.The Group is currently assessing the impact of the standard on its financial statements. The standard also requiresadditional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 13, Enr I ‘a/ne lfeasurement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted bythe EU). Aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a revised definition of fair value, and asingle source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The Group is currentlyassessing the impact of the standard on its financial statements.

Amendments to I.\S 1, Presentation of Items of Other C’omprehensive Income (effective for annual periods beginning on orafter 1 July 2012; not yet adopted by the EU) The amendments require entities to separate items presented in othercomprehensive income into two groups, based (in whether or not they may be reclassified to profit or loss in thefuture. The suggested title used by LtS 1 has changed to ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’.The Group expects the amended standard to change presentation of its financial statements, but to have no impact (inthe measurement (if transactions and balances.

Amended lAS 19, Employee BenJits (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, not yet adoptedliv the EL’) — makes significant changes to the recognition and measurement of a defined benefit pension expense andtermination benefits as well as to the disclosures for all employee benefits. The standard requires recognition of allchanges in the net defined benefit lialiilitv (asset) when they occur as follows: service cost and net interest income (‘expense) in profit or loss; and remeasurements in other comprehensive income. The Group is currently assessing theimpact of the amended standard on its financial assets.

There are no other new or revised standards or interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to havea material impact on the group.

Comparability

lhe financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the consistency and comparability principles, the
nature of the changes in methods and their effect is explained in the respective notes, When the presentation of itemsin the financial statements or their classification method has been amended, then also the comparative information ofprevious periods has been restated.
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Foreign currency transactions, financial liabilities and assets denominated in a foreign currency

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currencyof their primary economic environment (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presentedin curos (EUR, which is the functional currency of the parent and the presentation currency of the Group. Until 31December 2010, the functional currency of the Group was the Estonian kroon (EEK, which was pegged to the euro
at the rate of EUR I = EUK 15.6366.

Ihe consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of euros (EUR) in compliance with the requirements
of the Tallinn Stock Exchange.

(b) Foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency

l’oreign currency transactions have been translated into the functional currency using the official exchange rate of the
European Central Bank prevailing at the transaction day. Exchange rate differences between the cash transfer date and
the transaction date, the currency translation differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the
official euro exchange rate of the European Central Bank applicable at the end of the reporting period. Any translation
gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Gains and losses on
translation of pavables and cash and cash equivalents are recognised as finance income and costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income; other gains and losses from exchange rate changes are recognised as other
operating income or operating expenses.

(c) Consolidation of foreign entities

The results and financial position of foreign entities that have a functional currency other than the presentation
currency of the Group are translated into the presentation currencies as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities are translated into euros at the exchange rate of the European Central Bank prevailing atthe balance sheer dare, except for non-current assets which are translated into euros using the exchange rateprevailing at the acquisition dare.
(b) income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the year (unless this average is not areasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing at transaction dates, in which caseincome and expenses are translated at the rate at the transaction dates);
(c) translation differences are recognised in a separate equity item “Currency translation differences”.

None of the Group’s subsidiaries operates in a hyperinflationary economic environment.

Principles of consolidation and accounting for subsidiaries

.\ subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has interest of more than one half of the voting nghrs or othenvise haspower to govern the operating and financial policies so as to obtain economic benefits. All subsidiaries have beenconsolidated in the Group’s financial statements. The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account furbusiness combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition (if a subsidiary or business unit is the fairvalues of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. Ihe considerationtransferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement..\cquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabdities and contingent liabilitiesassumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by_acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at thecontrolling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

In the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the subsidiaries under the control of the Parentcompany (except for the subsidiaries acquired for resale) are combined on a line-by-line basis. Intercompany balances,transactions and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrcalised losses are alsoeliminated unless the cost cannot he recovered. The Group and all of its subsidiaries use uniform accounting policiesconsistent with the Group’s policies. Where necessary, the accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed toensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investments into subsidiaries are reported at cost (less any impairment losses) in the separate primary financialstatements of the Parent company.
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Financial assets

(a) Classification

Depending on the purpose for which financial assets were acquired as well as management’s intentions, financial assets
are divided into the following groups:

— financial assets at fair value through profit or hiss;
— loans and receivables:
- held-to-maturity investments;- available-for-sale financial assets.

The category of a financial asset is determined by the Management Board upon the initial recogmtion of the financial
asset.

The Group ha not classified any financial assets as held-to_maturity investments, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or available-for sale financial assets,

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, which are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are recognised as current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
as at the end (if the reporting period; in that case, they are recognised as non-current assets. The following financialassets have been recognised in the category of loans and receivables: “Cash and cash equivalents”, “Deposits at banks
with maturities of over three months”, “Trade receivables and other receivables”.

(b) Recognition and measurement

The purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date. Financial assets are derecognised when therights to receive cash fh)ws from the investments have expired or have been transferred, and the Group has transferredsubstantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plustransaction costs. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method (less anyimpairment losses). See also accounting policy G.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is evidence that a financial asset or a group of financialassets is impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,hank account balances (except for overdraft) and term deposits with maturities of three months or less. Cash and cashequivalents are carried at amortised cost.

‘j Trade receivables

‘Trade receivables’ re non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in anactive market. Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequentlymeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less a provision for impairment.

Impairment (if receivables is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect allamounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Evidence of potential impairment includes the bankruptcyor major financial difficulties of the debtor and non-adherence to payment dates. The impairment of the receivablesthat are individually significant (i.e. need for a write-down) is assessed individually for each customer, based tin thepresent value of expected future collectible amounts, Receivables that are not individually significant or fur which noobjective evidence of impairment exists, are collectively assessed fur impairment using previous years’ experience onuncollectible receivables. The amount of loss of the impaired receivables is the difference between the carryingamounts of receivables and the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interestrate. ‘l’he carrying amount iif receivables is reduced by the amount of doubtful receivables and the impairment loss isrecognised in profit or loss \vithin Other operating expenses. If a receivable is deemed irrecoverable, the receivable and itsimpairment loss are taken off the balance sheet. The collection of the receivables that have previously been writtendown is accounted for as a reversal of the allowance for doubtful receivables.
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Inventories

Inventoriei are stated at the lower of acquisition cost and net realisable value. Inventories arc initially recognised atacquisition cost which consists of purchase costs, direct and indirect production costs and other costs incurred inbringing the inventories to their current condition and location.

In addition to the purchase price, purchase costs also include custom duties, other non-refundable taxes directlyattributable transport, less discounts and subsidies. The production costs of inventories include costs directly telated tothe units of production (such as direct raw materials and materials and packing material costs, unavoidable storagecosts related to work in progress, direct labour costs), and also fixed and variable production overheads that areallocated to the cost of products on the basis of normal production capacities.

The weighted average cost method is used for the evaluation (if inventories at the Group.

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs ofcompletion and the estimated Costs necessary to make the sale. The amount of the inventory write-down is recognisedin the income statement line cost o goods sold.

The expenditure incurred for the purpose of real estate development is reported in the balance sheet line Inventoireseither as work-rn progress or finished goods, depending on the stage (if completion. \Vhen the development ofproperty is financed with a loan, the borrowing costs incurred during development are included in the Cost of theproperty. The completed reai estate project is sold either in parts (by residential buildings, apartments, office premises,etc.) or as a whole. Revenue is recognised as revenue from the sale (if goods. A notarial agreement is concludedbenveen the seller and the buyer at the time (If the sale of the property and the respective entry is made in the landregister.

, Investment property

Real estate properties (land, buildings) that the Group owns or leases under finance lease terms to earn lease Income orfor capital appreciation, and that are not used for the Group’s operating activities, are classified as investment property.

Investment property is initially measured at its Cost, including related transaction costs, After initial recognition,investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Investment property isdepreciated over its useful life using the straight-line method for calculation of depreciation. Annual depreciation ratesof investment property range from 2,5 to 15 per cent. The accounting policies in Section J apply to both property,plant and equipment, and investment property.

Depreciation (if an asset begins when the asset is available for use for the purpose intended by management and isceased when the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, when the asset is permanently withdrawn from use. Ateach balance sheet date, the appropriateness (if the depreciation rates, the depreciation method and the residual value isreviewed.

[‘he costs of reconstruction and improvement are added to historical cost when it is probable that future economicbenefits will tiow to the Group and they can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are chargedto the income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

• Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are non-current assets used in the operating activities of the Group with a useful life (ifover one year. An item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at its cost which consists of thepurchase price (including customs duties and other non-refundable taxes) and other expenditures directly related to theacquisition that are necessary for bringing the asset to its operating condition and location. Borrowing costs related tothe acquisition of non—current assets, the completion of which occurs over a longer period (if time, are included in thecost of non current assets. ‘I’he cost of a self constructed asset is determined using the same principles as for anacquired asset.

Costs of reconstruction and improvements are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Groupand the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the incomestatement during the period in which they are incurred

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairmentlosses (see accounting policy L. The difference between the acquisition cost and the residual value of an asset is
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depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Each part of an item with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost (it the item and with a useful life different from other significant parts of that same item is depreciated separately
based on its useful life.

Depreciation is calculated on the basis (if useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment, using the straight line
method. ‘I’he annual depreciation rates applied to individual assets by groups of property, plant and equipment are as
follows (per cent):

• buildings and facilities 2.5 — 15
• machinery and equipment 10 — 25
• motor vehicles 10 — 20
• other fixtures and fittings 20 — 40
• land is not depreciated

Depreciattirn of an asset begins when the asset is available for use for the purpose intended by management and is
ceased when the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, when the asset is permanently withdrawn from use or
upon its reclassification as held for sale. At each balance sheet date, the appropriateness of the depreciation rates, the
depreciation method and the residual values are reviewed.

\Vhere an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount (higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value m use), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (see the accounting policy in Section L).

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from the disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment are included either within other operating income or other operating expenses in the income statement.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are expected to be sold within the next 12 months and for which the
management has commenced active sales activities and which are offered for sale at their fair value for a realistic price
are reclassified as assets held for sale.

i Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded at cost and they are subsequently carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (see accounting policy L).

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their useful lives (2.5-5 years) using the straight-bne method.
The Group has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are sub1ect to depreciatu)n and amortisation, and assets with unlimited useful lives (land) are reviewed for
any indication of impairment. Whenever such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
compared with the carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less Costs to sell
and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non financial assets other than good\vlll that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date. ‘The previous impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the remaining carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount which would have
been determined considering regular deprecation, had the impairment loss not been recognised.

: Operating and finance lease

Leases which transfer all significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee are classified as finance
leases. .\ll other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets and liabilities under finance leases are initially recognised at the lower of the fair value (if the leased property and
the present value of’ minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. Financial expenses are allocated over the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Payments made or received under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight_line basis over the
period of the lease. Properties leased Out under operating leases are classified as investment property.

f’’,.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (trade payables, borrowings, accrued expenses and other short and hrng-term borrowings) are
initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Upon the initial recognition of such financial liabilities which are not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss, the transactions costs directly attributable to the acquisition are deducted from their fair value.

Borro\vtng costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiaon, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to period expenses.

Ihe amortised cost of current financial habthties generally equals their nominal value; therefore, current financial
liabilities are carried in the balance sheet in their redemption value. For determining the amortised cost of non-current
financial liabilities, they are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received (less any transaction
costs), calculating interest expense on the liability in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method.

A financial liability is classified as current when it is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date or
the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for more than 12 months after thebalance sheet date. Borrowings due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date that are refinanced aslong-term after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, are recognised ascurrent liabilines. Borrowings that the lender has the right to recall at the balance sheet date as a consequence (if abreach of contractual terms are also recognised as current liabilities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or contractual obligation which hasarisen as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow (if resources embodying economic benefits will berequired to settle the obligation, and the amount of the liability can be reliably estimated.

The provisions are recognised based on management’s (or independent experts’) estimates regarding the amount andtiming of the expected outflows. Risks and uncertainties are taken into consideration when measuring provisions; theprovisions for which the effect of the time value of money is significant are discounted. The increase of the provisiondue to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

Other commitments that in certain circumstances may become obligations, but it is not probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Provision for long_term disability compensations

Under law, the Group is obliged to pay compensation to employees for permanent injuries incurred dunng theiremployment at the Group. The level of the benefit depends on the extent (if disability, the average monthly salary ofthe employee prior to injury, and the changes in pension payments by the state. The level of the benefit does notdepend on the length of service. For the Group, the obligation to pay benefits arises at the time when the degree of theemployee’s incapaci fir work is determined.

Disability compensation is recognised in the balance sheet in its discounted present value. In measuring the liability,management has used demographic assumptions (such as mortality), and financial assumptions (e.g. the discount rateand future benefit levels).

The rate used to discount the obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on highquality corporate bonds, the currency and term of which are consistent with the currency and estimated term of theobligation.

, Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Payables to employees contain the contractual right arising from employment contracts and performance based paywhich is calculated on the basis of Group’s financial results and meeting of objectives set for the employees.Performance-based pay is included in period expenses and as a liabthtv if it is paid out in the next financial year.

Pursuant to employment contracts and current legislation, payables to employees also include an accrued holiday payliability as at the balance sheet date. This liabthtv also includes accrued social and unemployment taxes calculated on it.
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Taxation

Corporate income tax

According to the Estonian Income Tax Act, the profits earned by Estonian entitws are not taxed when they areincurred but at the time they are distributed. From I January 2008, dividends are taxed with the income tax rate of21/9 of the amount paid out as net dividends, from which income tax paid before 1,1.2000 can be deducted using arespective coefficient. The corporate income tax arising from the payments of dividends is accounted for as an expensein the period when dividends are declared, regardless of the actual payment date.

Due to the nature of the Estonian taxation system, the term “tax base of assets and liabilities” does not have economicsubstance and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities and assets can arise.

According to local income tax legislation, the profits of entities in Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine are adjusted for thepermanent and temporary differences provided by law. Pursuant to tax legislation, temporary differences arise betweenthe carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities; therefore deferred income tax liabilities and assets arise. Asat 31.12.2011 and 31.12.2010, the subsidiaries did not have any deferred tax assets and liabilities. The management ofthe Group estimates that the realisation of the income tax asset is not reliably assessable, thus it is not recorded in thefinancial statements.

According to income tax regulations in Latvia and Lithuania, the taxpayers of the respective country are subject to thecorporate income tax on taxable profits earned in the financial year. In Latvia, the income tax rate was 15°’o in 2011and 2010. In Lithuania, the income tax rate was 15% in 2011 and 2010. In Ukraine, the income tax rate was 23°/o in2011 and 25% in 2010.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of value-added tax, rebates anddiscounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods and products is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership havebeen transferred to the buyer, when the amount of revenue and costs incurred in respect of the transaction can bemeasured reliably and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the sales transaction will be collected.

Cash flow statement

‘The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. Cash flows from operating activities are determined byadjusting the net profit for the financial year through elimination of the effect of non-monetary transactions, changesin the balances of assets and liabilities related to operating activities and revenue and expenses related to investing orfinancing activities. Cash flows from investing or financing activities are recognised under the direct method.

lj Segment reporting

Operating segments have been determined and information about operating segments has been disclosed in a mannerconsistent with preparation of reporting for making management decisions and analysing the results. Segmentreporting is in compliance with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chiefoperating decision-maker who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operatingsegments, has been identified as the Management Board of AS Vusnurk.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items which are directly related to the segment or can be allocated to it ona reasonable basis.

Statutory reserve capital

Statutory reserve capital is formed from annual net profit allocations as well as other provisions which are entered inreserve capital pursuant to legislation or articles of association. The amount of reserve capital is stipulated in the articlesof association and it cannot be less than 1/10 of share capital. Each financial year, at least 1/20 of net profit shall beentered in the reserve capital. When reserve capital reaches the level required by the articles of association, theallocations to reserve capital from the net profit may be terminated.
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Based on the decision of the General Meeng of Shareholders, the statutory legal reserve max’ be used to cover a loss,
or to increase share capital. Payments shall not be made to shareholders from the statutory legal reserve.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net protit for the financial year attributable to the equity holders
of the parent by the period’s weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. Diluted earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year attributable to the equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of outstanding ord.inarv shares, adlusted for the effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Events after the balance sheet date

Significant circumstances that have an adusung effect on the evaluation of assets and liabilities and that became
evident between the balance sheet date and the date of approving the financial statements (29 March 2011) but that arerelated to the reporting period or prior periods, have been recorded in the financial statements. Non-adjusting eventsand the events that have a significant impact on the results of the next financial year have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant willbe received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferredand recognised in the income statement as income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they areintended to compensate.

, Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risks

The operations of the Group expose it to several financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (whichinvolves foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate risk of cash flows). The general risk management programmeof the Group focuses on unpredictability of the financial market and attempts to minimise any possible negative effectson the financial activities of the Group. The Group’s financial instruments include cash for funding operating activitiesand receivables from debtors and payables to creditors arising in operating activities as well as loans. Management
defines risk as a potential deviation from the expected results. The Group’s risk management is based on therequirements of the Tallinn Stock Exchange, Financial Supervision Authority and other regulatory bodies as well ascompliance with Corporate Governance Recommendations and the Group’s internal regulations. All financial assets (ifthe Group are in the categories of “Cash and bank” and “Receivables”, all financial liabilities are in the category of“Other financial liabilities” carried at amortised cost.

I/au jail 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Financial assets
Cash and bank 206 1 011

mc!. cash 5 ii)
bank 20i 1 1)01

Receivables (Note 5) 1 290 966nc!. trade r,rcajvtltlcs 1 257 925
ther ..h ri-term receivables 33 41

Total financial assets 1 4% 1 977

Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Note 10) S 870 2 116
Pavables (Note 12) 1 254 741
ox!, trade p.o ables 1 116 612

r short-term pat’ables 138 129
Total financial liabilities 7 124 2 857

(a) Credit risk

AS Vusnurk’s credit risk is the risk of the inabdity of its business partners to meet their contractual obligations. TheGroup’s credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits in banks and financial institutions as well asreceivables exposed to risk.
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Cash and bank

I’he Group approves banks and financial institutions with the credit rating of “A” as its long-term collaborationpartners, however, banks without a credit rating are also approved.

(Insist ( 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Credit rating “.3 27 557Not rued 14 444TotI 201 1 001

The credit rating is available on the website of Moody’s Investor Service.

Receivables

Pursuant to the Group’s credit policy, no security is required from wholesale customers to ensure collection (ifreceivables, but focus is laid on iminitoring deliveries, balances of accounts receivable and compliance with paymentterms on a continuous basis. In riskier markets, complete or parfial prepayment, credit limits and shorter paymentterms are applied.

As a rule, sales to retail customers occur in cash, using prepayments or bank credit cards, therefore there is no creditrisk related to sale to retail customers except for risk related to banks and financial institutions that the Group hasapproved as its business partners.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group was not aware of any major risks related to accounts receivable except for 49thousand euros (2010: 46 thousand euros) which had been deemed as uncollectible, see Notes 5 and 21. The Groupmonitors the financial position of its current and potential partners and their ability to meet the obligations they haveassumed.

Key customers and their share

Key customers are defined as those to whom the sales amount to more than 5% of the Group’s revenue.

Balance of receivables from key customer by age;
tI,su.nvuI ( 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Not due 404 377( )vcrdue
Vp to 90 d,tvs 0 32

TOTAL 404 409

See also Note 5 for additional information regarding receivables.

(b) Liquidity risk

I.iquiditv risk is a potential loss arising from limited or insufficient monetary funds necessary for the meeting ofobligations arising from the Group’s operations. Management constantly monitors cash flow forecasts, evaluating theexistence and availability of the Group’s monetary resources to meet the obligations assumed and to fund the Group’sstrategic goals.

,\nalvsis of financial liabilities by maturity as at 31.12.2011:
(/sTh.j,,/ (

Undiscounted cash flows
Balance at lip to 3

31.12.2011 months 3-12 months 1-2 years 3-5 rears lotalBank loans (Note 10) 5 65 I 534 2015 2 95 6 51linance lease liabilities (Note 10) 18) 10 26 57 15 IllSItade pavables (Note 12) 1116 1116
.

—
— 1116)thur pa ,iblcs Note 12) 138 138

-
.

- 138Toal 7 124 1329 1 560 2072 2972 7 933
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.\nalvsis of financial liabilities by maturity as at 31.12.2010:
//ai. 1,/I I Undiscounied cash tiows

Balance at t p to 3
31.12.2010 months 3-12 months 1 2 years 3-5 tears total

Bank loans (Note 10) 1 899 800 433 740 1 9’Sloaner lease liabilines Note 10) 217 184 18 18 22))
trade p.o .ibles (Ni te 12) 612 612 -

- - (12I )thcr payables (Note 12) 129 129 - - 129Total 2857 1725 451 758 0 2934

For determining cash tiows for mterest bearing borrowings which are based on floating interest rate, the spot interest
rate has been used.

(c)Market risk

Interest rate risk of cash flows

The interest rate risk of the Group’s cash flows is mainly related to long_term debt obligations with a floating interest
rate.

The Group is exposed to cash flow risk affected by interest rate changes, because the loan has a variable interest rate —

the sensitivity analysis for fluctuation in interest rates is presented below. The management estimates that the cash flow
risk related to changes in interest rates is not material, therefore financial instruments are not used to hedge risks.

The interest rate tisk of AS Vusnurk depends mainly on possible changes in Eunbor (Euro Interbank offered Rate),
because the Group’s loan interest rate is tied to Euribor. As at 31.12.2011, 6-month Euribor was 1.617 and as at31.12.2010, 1.227. If at 31.12.2011, Euribor had been larger/smaller by I percentage points (2010: 1 percentage points),
the interest expense would have been larger/smaller by 139 (2010: 10) thousand euros.

For the loan in the initial amount of 4,967 thousand euros, the dates for fixing interest rates on the basis of changes inEurihot are 30 November and 30 May each year.

As at 31.12.2011, the total carrying amount of the loan was 4,967 thousand euros and as at 31 .12.2010:,1 ,899 thousandeuros.

‘Ihe deposits of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents have fixed mterest rates.

As at 31.12.2011, the overdraft agreement in the amount of 803 thousand euros (31.12.2010: 0 euros) and finance lease
agreements in the amount of 100 thousand euros (3 1.12.2010: 2l thousand euros) had fixed interest rates.

Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the Group may incur a significant loss asa result of fluctuations inforeign currency exchange rates. AS Viisnurk’s foreign currency exchange risk from export-import transactions is lowbecause most of the contracts have been concluded in euros. In the financial year, the Group collected 1.6 millioneuros in currencies not directly or indirectly tied to the Euro, of which 54°o constituted proceeds in UAH, 28°s inLTL, and 17° s in LVL. The Group paid for goods and services in the amount of 1.0 million euros in the currencies
with an exchange risk of which 6l°’o in UAH, 18°/o in LTL and 15°c in LVL. Management considers its activities inUkraine to be exposed to foreign currency exchange risk, because the transactions in that market are concluded inhryvnias, whose exchange tate has fluctuated considerably. The assets and liabilities located outside Estoma are
exposed to changes in exchange rates of the local currency.

The Group has not acquired any derivative financial instruments to manage the currency nsk.

1he Group’s foreign currency positions and sensitivity analysis at 31.12.2011:

f/s, vid
1.11. [1 1. 1 IIIants presented in the

currencies in which the finanetal
instruments has e been
denominated:
(.oli and hank
Receivables (Note 5)
Total financial Sssets

1)6 4 2t) 26
1266 1 8 122
1352 75 28 848
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Pas ibics ‘Note 12
Financial liabilities

Net tiireign currency positions
l’IUR
Strengthening or n eakening if

ii retgn currency against I ‘ U R,
P[iect tin net profit Id, R

mount, preen/ui in i/s .unenies in
a In), i/s /inanoial in,irumi’nts lou
been iienom,,i,ut,’th

ash md bank
Reeer. ables (Ni te 5)
Total financial assets

0 lisI 0’ ‘entu i g k1efltLTd,SFeflm(CkS
I) fC tI fi ., (ti ftf C tIC 0 ly

ii, d
-

L w i;i seL20Ucuc ‘/j)g,f’ _j
‘0!, 0 pe m.d 0 0

5 51)
I 242
7 112

(5 ‘60)

56
56

19 3

Total impact
2” o 500 on net profit:

I 4 5

Net ii reign currency pm sirions

U kR
Strengthening ir weakening of
foreign currency agmunst I Ulk.
[(feet on net profit I!t.’R

(595) (4r) 23 45
Total impact

20, 15°. on net profit:
II 12

3.2 Capital management

In capital risk management, the Group’s main goal is to ensure the Group’s sustainabthtv of operations in order togenerate returns to its shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, thereby maintaining the optimal capitalstructure to lower the cost of capital. In order to preserve or irnprtive the capital structure, the Grtiup can regulate thedividends payable to shareholders, reimburse the paid in capital, issue new shares or sell assets to lower its habthties.The management monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio. hits ratio is calculated as net debt dividedby total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as shown inthe consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as the sum of equity as shownin the consolidated balance sheet and net debt.

In accordance with the loan agreements entered into, the Group needs tt) monitor its financial indicattirs. The debtcoverage ratio (EBITDA for the reporting period divided by the debt obligations payable during the reportmg period)must be larger than 1.4 and the debt obligations of group entities divided by EBITDA for the reporting period may notexceed 5 in 2012 and 3.5 in 2013. As at 3112.2011 and 31.12.2010, the Grtiup’s financial mdicators were in conformitywith the conditions of the loan agreements.

i/mind 1 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
IC .rriiouings Ni ‘te I I)) 5 87(1 2 116( ash mud c,msh equis alenis (N, ic 3) 206 I ((1 1Net debt 5 664 1 105lotal equity (Note 14) 7 693 5 331total capital 13 357 6 436I)ebt to capital r.itio 42” o 1”

3.3. Fair value

Management estimates that the fair values of cash, accounts payable, short-term loans and borrowings do notmaterially differ from their carrying amounts. The fair values of long_term loans and borrowings do not materiallydiffer from their carrying amounts because their interest rates correspond tt) a material extent to the interest rate risks

I))
10 2

Net foreign currency positions (5 760) 65 26 904
S nab ots itt presetitation

currencies:

The Group’s foreign currency positions and sensitivity analysis at 31.12,2010:

I( 1k 1.11. 1.1 J_ U, Ill
iloun,,i,iei

I 280 79” IC 26 ThO
2561 782 3 8 80
3841 1579 90 34 840

Itorrouings (Note II)) 2 9() I 938 0 0 (1P,oables (Note 12) 10 359 68 ii 2 52Financial liabilities 13 149 2 006 11 2 52

Net foreign currency positions (9 308) (427) 79 32 788
\nalvsts in presentation

currencies:
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fl u.o I Iprevailing in the market. The Group has conducted one loan in 2011; the risk margin (if which is 2.55o (Note 10) IheGroup’s management is of opinion that since the loan was taken only in June of the current year and thus only a shorttime has passed from receipt of the loan, the management estimates that the effect im the risk margin is not materialand therefore the fair values of liabilities do not significantly differ from their carrying amount.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requiresmanagement to make accounting estimates. Management aiso needs to pass judgemcnt regarding the choice ofaccounting policies and their apphcanon.

Management judgements and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis and they are based on historical experienceand other factors such as forecasts of future events which are considered reasonable under current circumstances.

The areas which require more significant or complex management decisions, and estimates and which have a majoreffect on the financial statements, include valuation of receivables and inventories (Notes 5, 6), and estimation ofuseful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) and investment property (Note 7), and theprovisions for long_term disability benefits (Note 13).

Valuation of receivables

Trade receivables are short-term receivables from customers, generated in the Group’s ordinary course of business.Trade receivables are carried at amortised cost (i.e. original invoice amount less any repayments and any impairmentlosses, if necessary). In valuating receivables, the Management bases its estimations on its best knowledge, taking intoaccount historical experience, general background informatiarn and possible assumptions and conditions of futureevents. In identifying the amount of receivable wntten down the length of debt is taken into account.

Valuation of inventories

Management measures inventories using its best judgement, histoncal experience, general background information andassumptions and conditions of future expected events. In determining the recoverable amount (if inventories, the salespotential and potential net realisable value of finished goods is considered; in assessing the recoverable amount of rawmaterials and materials, their potential use in producing finished goods and earning income is estimated. In assessingwork-in_progress, its stage of completion which can be measured reliably is used as the basis. In assessing the cost ofraw materials which arc not precisely measurable, management uses estimates based on historical experience.

Impairment testing of non-current assets

If there exist any indications that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable amount (higher of theasset’s fair value (less costs to seH) and its value in use) of the asset (see also the accounting policy in Section 2L.

In 2010, there were no indications of impairment of assets and therefore, no impairment tests were performed.

Useful lives and residual values of investment property and property, plant and equipment

Management determined the useful byes of real estate properties, buildings and equipment on the basis (if productionvolumes, historical experience in the area and future outlook. The residual values are determined based on historicalexperience in the area and future outlook. When assessing the sensitivity of profits to depreciation and amortisation,management assumed that by changing the deprecation rates by 25° s, the Group’s profit in 2011 would change liv 169thousand euros and in 2010 135 thousand euros.

Estimation of provisions for long-term disability benefits

Calculation of the amount (if compensation depends on several assumptions, the most significant of which areassumptions regarding the expected remaining lives of employees receiving the benefits, and assumptions about thediscount rate. Management has used the statistical data publicly available at the Statistical Office of Estonia regardingthe expectations of the remaining period (if payments. 1he discount rate has been determined based on market yieldson high quality corporate bonds, available in the Baltic Bond List. The discount rate in 2011 was 550 and in 2010,If the discount rate was changed by 1 pp, the balance of pavables would change by 17 thousand euros in 2011 andliv 14 thousand euros in 2010. See also Note 20 and Note 13.

1 CW ‘NN)FK(At \H()N WE .ICWIANc)°UW cAL 31



jtt ur

1n1t lkd fort e urp s wi do tI tlor r

tnts 7e

ill p11 Vi( 3c

L pcrho seGoOPerSI

Receivables and prepayments

,/,i ,,,d( 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
trade reeds ,tbles I 306 9 I
\ Ilowaitce 6 ir impaired receivables (Note 3) (49) (46)
trade receivables net (Niite 3) 1 257 925
Prepaid taxes 327 198
Prep ud sers ices 57 34

)rher current receis shIes (Note 3) 33 41

TOTAL 1674 1198

Impairment losses of receivables and their reversal are included in the income statement lines Other operating income andOf/icr operatiog eapenses, see also Notes 20 and 2L

t’iia”r/ ( 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Irrecoverable receivables taken off the balance
sheet 2 29
Is os due to Impairment of receis shIes 7 15
( illectii in i if receivables written down in
pces ious periods 2 4

.nalvsis of trade receivables by aging:
i/’iirst( 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

1 ((77 117))
Not due
Re,ra able, /mm n/omen n/i,) also bare eecei,ah/es past
i/li) 424
l<enna/rler Jmm ew.rtomeri u/is bare no recenab/es pat
Ira 653 341

Overdue but not impaired 180 55
Uteri/ne up to 91) days / 80 50
((/en//fr mon 1/ran 90 i/its 0

Impaired 49 46
(1, er/ne rip is 90 i/at’ 7 2

(,erdue mow i/ran 9(1 i/sir 42 44

TOTAL 1306 971

Other current receivables were not due as at 31.12.2011 and 31.12.2010. The receivables and prepayments are pledgedas part of the commercial pledge (Note 10).

Inventories

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Rass materials and i itlier materials 918 fill

rirk-unproiress - pri iduciuon 508 52’
\Vork in progress real estate deoelopment 214 214Ibiutshed goods 1 293 929
Urii ,ds purchased tor resale 167 1115

iords in transit 74
Prepavinenis to suppliers 3 18

TOTAL (Note 24) 3 177 2484

In 2011, materials were written down with the cost of 3 thousand euros (2010: 6 thousand euros). In 2011, finishedgoods were written down with the cost of 29 thousand euros (2010: 20 thousand euros). In 2011, goods purchased forresale were written down with the cost of I thousand Curtis (2010: 5 thousand euros).

Inventories have been pledged and they are part of the commercial pledge (Note 10).

Inventories - real estate development

The buildings and land forming a part (ca 14 000 m2) of the property at Rälma Street 31, Phrnu and covered by thedevelopment contract are classified within inventories as a real estate development project. The development of theproperty started in 2007.
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Work in progress — real estate development
at 31.12.2009 214

\ddtte ii 2 I vestments 2010 0

Work in progress — real estate development
at 31.12.2010 214

\ddt tional in esiments 201 1 0

Work in progress — real estate development
.st3l.12.2011 214

Fair value of the share of the property:
i/mu and C

31.12.2010 499

31.12.2011 430

The market value of the share of the registered immovable (no. 1409605) at RSama Street 31, Pärnu was determined byan independent real estate expert in the month following the balance sheet date in the reporting year as well as in theprior period. The fair value is based on the assumption that the share is separately realisable. Management estimates
that the share of Radma 31 property is separately realisable.

.\s at 31.12.2011, the work in progress — real estate development was pledged as collateral in carrying amount (if 214thousand euros (31.12.2010: 214 thousand euros), see also Note 10.

Investment property

t/wnirnI C
Cost at 31.12.2009 469
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2009 (284)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2009 185

Cost at 31.12.2010 469
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2010 (284)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2010 185

Cost at 31.12.2011 469
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2011 (284)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2011 185

Fair value of investment property:
Iloijand C

31.12.2010
Share t re5;sterd immovable at Riima Street
94, P:mu 556

31.12.2011
Share of renstered immovable at Rddrna Street
94, Pamu 500

Investment property comprises part of the property at Rääma Street 94, Pärnu (no. 1403305). The market value of theshare of the property was evaluated by an independent real estate expert in the month following the balance sheet datein the reporting year as well as in the prior period.. ‘l’he fair value is based on the assumption that the share isseparately realisable, Management estimates that the share of Rdäma 94 property is separately realisable.

‘I’hc Investment property is not depreciated because the estimated residual values of the investment properties exceedtheir carrying amounts.

In the financial year, the cnsts directly attributable to management of investment property were 20 thousand euros(2010: 6 thousand euros). In the financial year, rental income from investment properties totalled 6 thousand curos(2011): 1 thousand euros).
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As at 31.12.2011, the carrying amounts of investment property pledged as collateral amounted to 185 thousand euros,and as at 31.12.2010, 185 thousand euros; see also Note 10.

Property, plant and equipment

//astoaarl ( Land Buildings and Machinery and ()thec lixtures Construction- TOTAL
)ac;lities equipment r’pn geessCost at3l.12.2009 79 4079 7193 287 56 11694Accumulated depreciation at

31.12.2009 0 (1566) (5 874) (223) 0 (7663)Carrying amount at 31.12.2009 79 2513 1319 64 56 4031

Reclassification 43 524 9 (576) 0Additions 43 119 34 558 754Disposals and svrtte-otfs (Notes 21;
24) 0 0 (2) (1) (23) (26)Depreciation charge (Notes 16; 24) 0 (192) (306) (43) 0 (541)Unre,ihsed currency translation
differences 0 0 0 (I) (1)

Cost at 31.12.2010 79 4165 7834 329 15 12422Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2010 0 (1758) (6 180) (267) 0 (8 205)Carryingamountat3l.12.2010 79 2407 1654 62 15 4217
Reclassification 8 110 454 8 (58))) 0Additions 1) I) 79 10 624 713Additions through business
combinations (Note 26) 139 5 760 6455Disposals and svnte-offs (Notes 21;
24) 0 (86) (103) (189)Wntten-off accumulated
depreciation (1 86 83 169Depreciation charge (Notes 16; 24) (187) (466) (20) (673)
Cost at 31.12.2011 226 4831 14041 244 59 19401Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2011 0 (1 945) (6560) (204) 0 (8 709)Carrying amount at 31.12.2011 226 2886 7481 40 59 10692

As at 3 1.12.2011, the cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use amounted to 5,448 thousandeurtts and as at 31.12.2010, the respective amount was 5,231 thousand euros.

.-\s at 3 1.12.2011, the carrying amount of non-current assets pledged as mortgages was 3,112 thousand euros and as at3 1.12.2010, 2,486 thousand euros. The remaining non-current assets are part of the commercial pledge; see also Note10.

Machinery and equipment include assets where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease with the carrying amount of122 thousand curos as at 31.12.2011 (2010: 220 thousand euros).

Construction-in-progress

As at 31.12.2011, constructaon_in-progress includes the investment in production technology in the amount of59 thousand curos.

As at 31,12.2010, construction-In-progress includes the investment in production technology in the amount of15 thousand curtis.
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Intangible assets
1/ou,and (

Cost at 31.12.2009 332
Accumulated amortisation at 31.12.2009 (331)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2009 1

Additions 2010 21
Wnte-offs 201)) (259)
\Vnte-off of accumulated amornsauon 2010 259
\inrtisatii n charge (Note 24) (2)

Cost at 31.12.20 10 94
Accumulated amortisation at 31.12.2010 (74)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2010 20

.\morttsanon charge (Note 24) (4)

Cost at 31.12.2011 94
Accumulated amortisation at 31.12.2011 (78)
Carrying amount at 31,12.2011 16

Intangible assets include computer software not directly linked to hardware.

j Borrowings

Information regarding borrowings as at 31.12.2011:
t/,,siasd I I)ue date

Total Within I tear 1-5 years 1-2 rears 3-5 tears
4 96 (>0)) FUR - eunbor+2,55° o 4 967 544 4 423 817 3 606
Finance lease 4,65°o 83 22 61 47 14
Finance lease 5,3°o 3 3 1) 1) I)
Finance lease 5,641° 14 8 6 6
( )verdraft 4° o 803 803 1) 0 ()

TOTAL 5 870 1 380 4 490 870 3 620

lnfirmation regarding borrowings as at 31.12.2010:
tha,,d ( Due date

Total Within 1 rear 1-5 rears 1-2 years 3-5 years
266>1(58> FUR - 6 month
curibor+3,6° 866 385 481 481 083>) 851 FUR -6 month
cunbor+2,2” o 649 649 (1
445 (1>))) FUR — 6 month
euribor+2,9°o 384 149 235 235 1)
Finance lease 5,8° o 7 7 0 () 0
Finance lease 5,3 1)) 7 3 3
Finance lease 5,641°o 22 >5 14 14
Finance lease 178 178 1) (1 1)

TOTAL 2 116 1 383 733 733 0

A loan agreement in the total amount of 4 967 thousand euros was concluded for acquisition Püssi fibreboard factory,
of that amount 3,200 thousand euros was intended for the partial financing of the acquisition of the factory and 1,767
thousand euros for refinancing the existing borrowings. The deadline for repayment of the loan is in 2016.
‘l’he borrowings of AS Vusnurk have been secured as follows:

• commercial pledge in the total amount of 3,001 thousand euros;
• mortgage with collateral claims in the total amount of 11,222 thousand euros.

lnfi>rmation regarding financial risks arising from borrowings is disclosed in Note 3, Information regarding the
carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for bank loans is disclosed in Notes 5, 6, 7 and 8.
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In cash ulow staterrient:

On ceeds from loans 5 905
Repayments of loans —1 899

lnance lease payments —252
TOTAL 3754

In the balance sheet:

Borrowings at 31.12.2010 2 116
13 rrowlngs at 31,12.2011 5 870
CHANGE 3754

<] Operating tease

The Group is the lessee

In 2011, operating lease expenses amounted to 352 thousand euros and in 2010, to 284 thousand euros.

Future lease payments under non-cancellable operaung leases:
tlsaa,,I : Machinery and

enuinment Store nremlscs
At31.12.201I
- 1 years 63 82
- between I and 5 years 109 180

TOTAL 172 262

At 31.12.2010
- 1 years 5)) 101
- between I and 5 years 31 238

TOTAL 81 339

Payables and prepayments

ihws,,,d 6 2011 2010
Trade payables (Notes 3) 1 116 612
Payables to employees 389 397
mel. accrued holiday pay reserve 119 147

provision for bonuses 113 113
Tax habilities 303 249
md. social security and unemployment 193 157
insurance

pers nil income tax 88 70
contnbution to mandatory funded pension 5 3
value added tax 15 16

ther tixe 2 3Prepayments received 191 75Other payables (Note 3) 138 129

TOTAL 2137 1462
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Provisions

1/o,,s,,s1 (
Balance at 31.12,2009 219

ne!. current prnon Ill pros mon S
ne!. ton—current pi irtion of pnrrision 21!

.\los etncnts in 2010:
Use if provisit in (22)
I ransfers to provision 6
Disbursements from provision (12)
Interest Ci 1st ire 22) 15

Balance at 31.12.2010 206
mci. current portion of pros ston 8
itici. lion current portion ot provision 198

\li ,vetnnts in 2011
Use oLpnnismon (24)
‘I’ransfers to pros ision 52
Interest cost (Niste 22) 16

Balance at 31.12.2011 250
mci. current portion of pros ision Ii
md. ton—current portion of provIsion 239

Provisions as at 31.12.2011 and 31.12.2010 related to the compensaeon for work accidents to former employees of AS
Vusnurk. The total amount of the provision has been esemated considering the number of persons receiving the
compensation, exttnt of their disability, their former salary level, level of pension payments, and esdmarions of the
remaining period of payments. See also Note 4.

Equity
Share capital

Number of shares (pcs) Share capital
Ihosiarnl (‘

Balance at 31.12.2011 4499 061 2699
Balance it 31.12.201)) 4499 061 2875

In conjunction with conversion of the nominal value of shares into euros, the General Meming of Shareholders held at
30,06.2011 decided to reduce share capital by 175,987.40 euros by way of reducing the nominal value of shares. The
share capital of AS Vusnurk amounted to 2,669,436.60 euros. The share capital consists of 4,499,061 (2010: 4,499,061)
issued, authonsed and fully paid ordinary shares with the nominal value of 0.60 euros each (2010: 0.64 euros).
According to the articles of association, the maximum amount of share capital is 10,797,744 euros. Each ordinary share
grants its owner one vote at the General Meming of Shareholders and the right to receive dividends.

In 2011 and 2010, no dividends were paid to shareholders.

As at 31.12.2011, the Group had 632 shareholders (31.12.2010: 566 shareholders) of which the following en&les had
more than a 5° o ownership interest:

• ‘Trigon \\ood ()e with 2 682 192 shares or 59,62% (2010: 59,47° o)

The number of shares owned by the members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board of AS Vusnurk was as
f fib ws:

• Ulo ,\damson 0 shares (2010: 0 shares)
• Joakirnjohan Helenius 20 000 shares (2010: 20 000 shares)
• Herd Riisberg 50 000 shares (2010: 0 shares)
• Andres Kivistik 0 shares (2010: 0 shares)
• Etnar Pähkel 0 shares (2010: 0 shares)

Contingent income tax liability

As at 31 December 2011, the adjusted unconsolidated retained earnings of the Company amounted to 4,115 thousand
The following is taken into consideranon with regard to available equity:

• as at the balance sheet date, it is possible to pay out 3,261 thousand euros as dividends, at a maximum;
• the corporate income tax on the aforementioned dividends would amount to 854 thousand curos.
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to the Ii instil iiiutiAs at 31 December 2010, the adjusted unconsohdated retained earnings of the Company amounted to 1,660 thousand
euros. The following is taken into consideration with regard to available equity:

• as at the balance sheet date, it is possible to pay out 1,317 thousand euros as dividends, at a maximum;
• the corporate income tax on the aforementioned dividends would amount to 343 thousand curos.

The maximum potential income tax liabthtv is calculated under the assumption that the distributable net dividends and
the amount of the income tax expense on dividends cannot exceed the distributable retained earnings as at the balance
sheet date.

According to the Income Tax Act, the Group is entitled to reduce the income tax payable on dividends to the extent of
income tax withheld in the subsidiary in Ukraine on interest expenses, in the amount of 3 thousand euros in 2011
(2009: 2 thousand curos).

Earnings per share

(

Basic carnings per share (CI’S)
Diluted earnings per share
Book value f share
l’ricc/earnings rao (l’/C)
Cbstng pnce of the share of .S Vusnurk on the
Iallinn Stock Cxchangc as at 3l,12.

Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the net profit for the reporting period by the number of shares:

EPS in 2011 = 2 564 910/4 499 061 0,57 euros
EPS in 2010 = 771 307/4 499 061 = 0,17 euros

In 2011 and 2010, the diluted earnings per share equal the basic earnings per share because the Group does not have
any potential ordinary shares with a dilutive effect on the earnings per share.

Price/earnings ratio (P/E) in 2011 = 1,62 / 0,57 = 2,84
Price/earnings ratio (P/E) in 2010 1,44 / 0,17 8,47

J; Cost of goods sold

I/isxml ( 2011 2010
Raw matenals and main matenals 6 276 4 821
Cmplovee benefits 3 371 2 583
I lectncirv and heat 3 282 1 977
l)eprcctanon 637 481
Purchased goods 80 74
Change in balances of finished di and ‘s rk i342) 197
in progress
( )ther expenses 786 532

TOTAL 14 119 10 665

Distribution costs

/I,asn,d (

1 ransponation expenses
Cmployee benefits
.\dvertising costs

\genev fees

Rental expenses
I )ther expenses

2011
—3-,
Soil

19)
19(1
29

2383

469
534
198
171
237
392

2001
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11,57
0,57
1,71
2,84

(1,17
(1,17
1,19
8,47

162 144

2010

TOTAL

41



Administrative expenses

th,aind C 2011 2010
l:mplovee benelits 361 334
Purchased services 1115 51
( )fuice supplies 34 24
( liher expenses 32 18

TOTAL 532 427

Staff costs

t/’s’si’nlt 2011 2010
Wages and salanes 2 954 2 382
Social security and unemployment insurance 1 077 842
Accrued holiday pay provision 250 197
Fnngc benefits paid to employees 41 30

TOTAL 4322 3451

In 2011, the average number of employees of AS Viisnurk was 351 (2010: 308).

Other operating income

2011 2010
Gain on bargain purchase5 2 455 0
Poreign exchange gains 14 20
Income from export marketing grant5 29 56
I )iher mci me 8 14

TOTAL 2506 90
One-off profit from the acquisition of Pussi fibreboard factory (see also Note 26 Business combinations).
The export marketing grant in the amount of 29 thousand euros (in 2010: 56 thousand euros) was received from

Enterprise Estonia. The export markedng project was launched at 28.04.2010 and it will conthaue until 27.03.201 2. The
Group has met all necessary conditions for receiving the grant and no additional commitments are related to the grant.

J Other operating expenses

fhsno,,d C 2011 2010
\llosvance for doubtful receivables (Note 5) 7 14

I ororaet fees 7 3
Reclamations 14 II
Loss from sale of non-current assets (Notes 8; 0 2
24)
I’en,ilties and tines for delay paid 4 1
( )ther oasis 11 8

TOTAL 43 39

Finance income and costs

Saam,,nI I 2011 2010
F inane ins me:

Interest income I

Total finance income 1 1

F man, e at.,:
Interest expenses 188 106
md. interest expense relaied to provision (Note 16 15

13)
I ‘orrign exchange loss 4

Total finance costs 188 110

See also Note 24. tiiserftuani ‘eqfftseerimiseks
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and corporate income tax paid on protit.

2011 2010

j Adjustments of profit before tax in the cash flow statement

I )epreciatu in charge (Ni lies 8; 9)
a us due to impairment of receixables

Proceeds from sale (it the purchase nght
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets
Pu ceeds In rn a I, Irgrun purchase (Note 8)
Interest expense (Note 22)
lucre ase)/decrease in reeds ables and

ments (Note 5)
Increase)/decrease in ins entories (Note 6)
ncrcase/ decrease) mi liabilities related to
peratirig activities

Total adjustments (2 050)

Segment reporting

Operating segments have been determined based on the reports reviewed by the Management Board that are used tomake strategic decision. The Management Board considers the business based ofl the types of products and services asfollows:

Bm/dng materza/s division (BID,) manufactures and sells to wholesale Customers general construcinn boards based onsoft woodtibre boards, and interior finishing boards. The fibreboard factory is located in Esronia.

Furmture acIoiy FF) is engaged in the production and wholesale of household furniture. The factory is located inlastonia.

ckatto (5K) is engaged in retail sales of furniture in Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine.

The Management Board assesses the performance of operang segments based on revenue as a primary measure. As asecondary measure, the Management Board also reviews operating profit.

.111 amounts provided to the Management Board are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financialstatements. Inter-segment sales are carried out at arm’s length.

Segment information foe operating segments:
,

. . . . . SEGMENTSi/sn a,id ( Furniture factory Skano Building materials Eliminations
TOTAL2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010Ret enue front external

customer’ 6 419 5 ‘8 2(102 5 83 8 909 6 314 1) (1 17 330 13 929Inter segment ret curie 917 1(61) 0 (1 0 II (1 (I 917 860Revenue fri rn customers
\t hi se cotttnhutiott is ml ire
than I (( I if consolidated
revenue: 5 116 4 585 (1 0 1) 0 0 I) 5 116 4 585(lieni I 2 985 3 002 II 0 0 (1 0 II 2 985 3 002(lint 2 2 131 1 583 (1 0 (1 II (1 II 2 131 1 583I )perattng protit/loss 635 542 (93) (1(8) 2 226 445 (9) (12) 2 759 887Proceeds fri rn b.irgain
pureltise (I (1 0 I) 2 455 1) 0 (I 2 455 0\morttsatton (depreciation 252 193 7 23 418 327 0 (I 677 543Segment issets 4(142 4 570 7111 693 ii 253 3 896 (55) (44) 15 950 9 115Segment liabilities I 891 I 958 222 129 6 144 1 69 0 1) 8 257 3 784\ddtiti ins to iii in—current
assets 223 585 II 18 479 12 () (1 713 775Purchase of business unit 1) (1 1) 0 6 455 (1 I) (I 6 455 0

Income tax expense (Note 14)

TOTAL 7 7

Ihe income tax expense comprises Income tax withheld on interest received from subsidiary TOV Skano Ukraina

2011 2010
677

(1
(5)
(5)

(2 455)
188

(476
(693)

719

543
11

11

11)6

4
196

(5)

855
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Niminations comprise unrealised protits on inventories arising from inter segment transactions. Investment property
and inventories relating to real estate development are allocated to the building materials division in accordance with
the allocation in the internal reports. Insignificant expenses related to these properties are also included within building
materials division.

Revenues from external customers according to their location:

2011 2010ihsusm/(
FE SK EMO TOTAL FF SK BMD TOTAL

Imiand 2 987 0 3 545 6 532 3)04 3 2 536 5 543Russia 3 158 0 1 428 4 586 2 394 0 686 3 080Ust,nia 68 683 1 634 2385 99 654 1 819 2572
Ukraine 0 720 72 792 0 594 33 627Ungland 0 0 720 720 0 0 63 63Sweden 0 I) 482 482 0 0 456 456lithuania 1) .375 .32 407 0 382 18 400Iatvia 1) 224 136 360 0 204 189 393Kasakhstan 194 (1 9 203 225 0 25 250Netherlands 0 0 179 179 1 0 1) 1Denmark 0 0 153 153 1 0 115 116Bulgaria 0 0 108 108 0 0 0 0India 0 0 96 96 0 0 63 63Germany 0 0 84 84 29 (1 70 99Israel 0 0 55 55 0 0 33 33ap.in 4) (1 36 36 0 0 0 0Greece 0 0 36 36 0 0 21 21(;hina 0 1) 32 32 0 0 65 65Belorussia 12 0 14 26 23 0 7 30trance 0 0 16 16 0 0 0 0Malaysia 1) (1 14 14 0 0 46 46C )thers 0 0 28 28 2 0 69 71TOTAL 6 419 2002 8 909 17 330 5 778 1 837 6 314 13 929

Revenue is generated from sales of OWfl producon and goods purchased for resale. Majority of the Group’s assets arc
located in Estonia (in 2011: 98% and in 2010: 95%).

j Business combinations

At 25 May 2011, AS Vusnurk purchased Ptissi fibreboard factory from the bankruptcy estate, the main area of activity
of which is the manufacture of fibreboards, paying 4,000 thousand euros for the acquired business unit. The business
unit was acquired with the purpose of increasing the production capacities in order to satisfy the total potential
demand. At the same time, it also enables to increase efficiency, allocating the product portfolio between the factories
of Pdssj and Plrnu in the most appropriate manner. The fair value of the assets of the acquired entity (there were no
liabilities) was 6,455 thousand euros, mci. the fair value of land and buildings of 720 thousand euros and the fair value
of equipment (if 5,735 thousand euros. The external experts were involved in assessing the assets of the entity — of the
largest items, the production line was assessed by Pöyry Management Consulting Oy and the registered immovables
were assessed by Uus Maa real estate agency. Since it was a bargain purchase and the acquisition price of the acquired
business entity in the amount of 4,000 thousand euros was smaller than the fair value of the acquired net assets in the
amount of 6 455 thousand euros, the resulting negative difference in the amount of 2,455 thousand euros wasimmediately recognised in the income statement. The total area of the registered immovables is 16.23 ha and the total
area of the buildings is 7684 m2.

The table below presents information on the cost of the acquired ownership interest and the fair value of the acquired
identifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

Consideration paid upon acquisition !/susas,d C
.\cquisinon price paid upon completion of the
transaction 4 000

Total cost of the acquired ownership interest 4 000

Acquired identifiable assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 6 455

Total acquired identifiable net assets 6 455
Profit from the bargain purchase 2 455
Total

4 000
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In the period from 25 May 2011 to 31 December 2011, the total revenue of the acquired business entity was 1 137
thousand curos and the loss 692 thousand euros.

The profit from the bargain purchase in the amount of 2,455 thousand euros was due to the fact that the business
entity was acquired at the bankruptcy estate auction and from valuation of the acquired assets to fair value.

Related party transactions

The following parties are considered as related parties:
• Parent 00 Trigon \\ood and owners of the parent;
• Other entities in the same consolidation group of the parent;
• Members of the Management, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of AS Vusnurk Group

entities and their close relatives;
• Entities under the control of the members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board;
• Individuals with significant ownership unless these individuals lack the opportunity to exert significant

influence over the business decisions of the Group.

As at 31.12.2011, the entities with significant influence over the Group are the largest owners of 00 Trigon Wood: AS
Trigon Capital (30.13%), Veikko Lame Oy (26.49°/o), Hermitage Eesti 00 (12.64%), Thominvest Oy (11.94%) and
SEB’s Finnish Customers (lO.96°’o).

Benefits (mci. tax expenses) to members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board of all consolidation group
entities:

( 2011 2010
adjusted

Short-term benefits (Note 19) 234 190
Social security tax 713 65

TOTAL 312 255

In 2011, short-term benefits were paid to members of the management and supervisory board of all consolidation
group entities in the total amount of 234 thousand euros (2010: 190 thousand euros). Pursuant to the contracts
concluded, as at 31.12.201 1, the members of the Management Board are entitled upon termination of management
board member agreements by the inmative of Supervisory Board to receive severance pay amounting to up to six-
month remuneration and as at 3 1.12.2010, severance pay amounting up to sLx-month remuneration

In 2011 and 2010, there were no other related party transactions.

‘
Contingent liabilities

[he tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and records within 6 years subsequent to the reported tax year,and upon establishing errors, may impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Group’s management is not
aware of any circumstances which may give rise to a potential material liabthtv in this respect.

Supplementary disclosures on the Group’s parent

The financial information on the parent is included in the separate primary financial statements (pages 46-48), the
disclosure of which in the notes to the consolidated financial statements is required by the Estonian Accounting Act.
The separate financial statements of the parent have been prepared using the same accounting policies as for theconsolidated financial statements, except for measurement of investment in subsidianes, which are stated at cost (less
any impairment losses).
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Statement of financial position of the parent company

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
t aslt and cash eqiivalcnts 9 822
Receis ables and prepat ments 2668 2 163
Ineniotics 2830 2 123

Total current assets 5 507 5 108

Ins estments of subsidianes 5 5
Ins cstment P0 perry 185 1 )5
l’ropertv. plant and equipment 1(1691 4204

Total non-current assets 10 881 4 394

TOTAL ASSETS 16 388 9502

l(orrossmgs 1 380 1 382
Pay ables and prepayments 1 915 1 334
Short-term pnntsions 11 8

Total current liabilities 3 306 2 724

long-term horrovtngs 4490 733
a ing term pros tsti ins 239 11)8

Total non-current liabilities 4 729 931

Total liabilities 8035 3655

Share capital at nominal value 2699 2 85
Share premium 364 64
Statutory reserve capital 288 288
Ret.uned earnings (>ote 14) 5002 2321)

Total equity 8353 5 847

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16388 9502

Statement of comprehensive income of the parent company
/hs,irnd ( 2011 2010
REVENUE 16245 12953
mel. ii, substdtaries 917 860

Cost of goods sold (14 017) (10 590)

Gross profit 2 228 2 363

Distribution costs (1 295) (960)
\dministratis e expettses (532) (4)

( ltD r i perattng mci ,me 2 498
ither operating expenses (46) (127)

Operating profit 2853 906

linance incoine and costs - net (171) (92)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2682 814

NET PROFIT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2682 814
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 2682 814
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

(tIter operating income includes profit from the barg-attt puccltase of Ikissi libreboard factory in the amount tif 2,455 thousand euros.
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Cash flow statement of the parent company
2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 2 682 814

.\djustnients:
I )epreciatir as 670 520
I siss trom sale and x’ die—down ot non—current assets 0 21
iain from bargain purchase (2 455)

I .oss from impairment if trade receivables 7 14
Proceeds from sale of purchase right (5)
I merest expenses 188 106
Interest Income (17) (17)

Increase)/decrrase in receivables and prepavmcnis (506) (108)
çlncrease)/decrease in invenioncs (707) 155
Increase/(ccrease) in current liabilities related to 625 56
operating actnifles

Cash generated from operations 482 1 561
Interest payments (188) (11)6)

Net cash generated from operating activities 294 1 455

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase if business unit (418%)) 1)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and (702) (757)
intangible assets

Sale of subsidiary 0 3
Interest received 17 17

Net cash generated from investing activities (4 685) (737)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans 5 905 445
Repayments of loans (1 899) (537)
Iiwtnce lease payments (252) (38)
Reduction of share capital (176)

Net cash used in financing activities 3 578 (130)

NET CHANGE IN CASH BALANCE (813) 588OPENING BALANCE OF CASH 822 234CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH 9 822

!nlthiUed for the purpose of .denhfication oniy
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Statement of changes in equity of the parent company

Share statutory Retained
premium reserve capital earningsShare capital Total

Balance at 31.12.2009 2 875 364 288 1 506 5 033(;arrsing amount of investments under
c ntrm ml and significant influence

(8)V alue of investments under control
and significant mmmilucnce under equity
method

(455)Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2009

4 570

Balance at 31.12.2009 2 875 364 288 1 506 5 033lomal comprehensive Income for 2010 (1 0 () 814 814Balance 31.12.2010 2 875 364 288 2 320 5 847( arrying amount of investments under
control and significant iri)lucnce

(5)Value of investments under control
and significant influence under equity
method

(655)Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2010

5 187

Balance at 31.12.2010 2 875 364 288 2 320 5 847Reduction of share capital (176) 0 0 11 (176)Iotal comprchensive income for 21)11 1) (I 1) 2 682 2 682Balance at 31.12.2011 2 699 364 288 5 002 8 353Carrying amount of investments under
control and significant influence

(5)Value of investments under control
and significant ntflucnce under equity
method

(882)Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2011

7 466

nitsahseertud 0h7u)t identifitseenmiseks
nfta.Ved for the purpo. of dendflcto on’y
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Translation of the Estonian original)*

To the Shareholders of AS Viisnurk

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AS Viisnurk and itssubsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2011and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity andstatement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies andother explanatory information.

Management Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Board is responsible for the preparation, and true and fair presentation of theseconsolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards asadopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as the Management Board determines isnecessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on ouraudit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Thosestandards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from materialmisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuresin the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financialstatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considersinternal control relevant to the entity’s preparation, and true and fair presentation of the consolidatedfinancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, butnot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Anaudit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of theconsolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinion.

AS PricewciterhouseCoopers, Pärmt innt 15, 10141 Tallinn, Estonia; Audit Companys Registration No.6T: +372 614 i800, F: +372 614 1900, www.pwc.ee
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial positionof AS Viisnurk and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2011, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards asadopted by the European Union.

AS PricewaterhouseCoopers

Ago Vilu Kristi Hörrak
Auditor’s Certificate No.325 Auditor’s Certificate No.548

29 March 2012

*

This version of our report is a translationfrom the original, which was prepared in Estonian. Allpossible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of theoriginal. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the originallanguage version ofour report takes precedence over this translation.
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Profit allocation proposal

The retained earnings of AS Viisnurk are:

thaaC
Retained earnings at 31.12.2010 1 788
Net prnfit in 2011 2 565
Retained earnings at 31.12.2011 4353

—

/
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Andres Kivistik Einar Pählcel

Oiairman of the Management board Member of the Management Board
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Revenue of the parent according to EMTAK

2011 2010
Ilonani (

31091 manufacture of furniture 7336 6639

16212 manufacture of particle
boards and fibreboards 8909 6314
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